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2009 Highlights

Challenging	market	situation

Also the markets for Simtronics’ products 
were hit by the economic crisis in 2009. 
However, the effects of the downturn were 
unequally distributed among the group’s 
business segments. The overall picture was 
that demand in general remained satisfactory 
throughout the year, with the exception of 
nitrogen generators. In the second half of the 
year a number of projects were postponed, 
affecting results for the last six months of 
2009.

Setback	in	nitrogen	generators

The market for nitrogen generators (mainly 
used onboard vessels) more or less imploded 
in 2009, as a direct consequence of the crisis 
in the shipbuilding industry. This is the single 
most important factor behind Simtronics’ 
deficit for the year. In order to manage the 
situation, the Korea branch was shut down 
and the nitrogen generator business was 
merged and relocated together with the 
group’s other Kristiansand based operations.

Results	affected	by	restructurings	
in	the	Extinguishing	business	area

The Extinguishing business area, includ
ing the nitrogen generator business, went 
through massive restructurings in 2009. 
Through the process, Simtronics established 
a significantly lower cost base, enabling 
the business area to operate profitably in a 
reduced market.

Solid	performance	by	the	Detection	
business	area

The Detections business area demonstrated 
its world class capabilities in 2009, when the 
Detection business in a period of economic 
crisis had its best performance ever. The 
business area performed well in all regions 
and reinforced its position in the Middle East 
in particular.

Strong	order	flow	maintained

Simtronics managed to maintain a satis
factory order flow also in 2009. The order 
intake established a strong order backlog for 
2010, despite the fact that several projects 
were temporarily postponed. The current 
economic situation forces customers to delay 
investments in projects to the last possible 
moment. Despite this, the underlying order 
pipeline and order intake remains attractive.

Proposed	Technor	acquisition	failed

The proposed acquisition of Technor failed to 
obtain sufficient majority in the Extraordinary 
General Meeting. The process of acquiring 
Technor did however generate considerable 
costs in 2009, adding to the group’s deficit for 
the year.
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Simtronics Network
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Financial Highlights

2009 2008

Figures in nok 1 000

operating income 288 475  359 712 

operating profit (loss) (30 366)  25 515 

operating margin (%) (10,5%) 7.1

basic earnings per share (nok)  (0,650) 0.140

diluted earnings per share (nok)  (0,650) 0.128

equity total (%) 30% 37

equity majority (%) 23% 29
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simtronics took a beating in 2009. A number 
of factors coincided and caused serious 
blows to our bottom line. The international 
economic crisis obviously took its toll on 
the general demand; our customers have 
delayed investments as long as possible. 
The standstill in the shipbuilding industry 
resulted in an imploding market for nitrogen 
generators. necessary measures were 
costly, one of our business areas has been 
completely reorganised. And finally, the un-
successful attempt at acquiring Technor also 
made an impact on the 2009 cost picture.

Retreating	
like a good boxer, simtronics has retreated 
from the worst hit areas. in our context, it 
means that we have closed down our opera-
tion in korea and reorganised the extin-
guishing business area. The previous Fire 
Prevention business area (nitrogen genera-
tors, mainly used on board vessels) is now 
part of extinguishing. Companies in this area 
have merged and relocated, and the number 
of employees has been reduced. The result is 
a significantly lower cost base and a business 
area able to perform satisfactory even in a 
softer market.

Analysing	the	situation	
A smack in the head is far from a knockout. 
if we disregard the non-recurring elements 
for a moment, a dramatic situation is found 
in only one single product line; nitrogen gen-
erators. Performance within the other parts 
of the extinguishing business area varied 

from acceptable to good in 2009. The newly 
established singapore office, for example, 
developed nicely last year. And our traditional 
area, detection, was a star performer in 
2009. detection actually experienced its best 
year ever.

Defensive	boxing	
simtronics experienced a tremendous 
growth during the two years prior to the 
economic crisis. when facing today’s eco-
nomic climate, it is only natural that we take 
time to consolidate and look at how we can 
regain profitability by reducing costs. with 
the reorganising of extinguishing behind us, 
the starting bell has already sounded. A cost 
reduction programme for the entire group 
has been launched. The target is to reduce 
our operating costs by 15 per cent in 2010. 

Gathering	strength	
The challenge of extensive cost reductions 
is to avoid loosing key knowledge of our 
markets, customers, systems and products. 
entry into new markets requires focus on 
obtaining products approvals and extensive 
marketing, both are activities we cannot stop 
if we are to maintain momentum. developing 
and maintaining excellent customer relation-
ships remain key success factors even in 
times of crisis. Actually, it is in times like 
these the customers observe which vendors 
are solid, in it for the long run and can be 
relied on. we will demonstrate that our 
strong customer focus remains intact. Also, 
we have a unique technological platform and 

A good boxer knows how to 

take a beating. he retreats, 

analyses the situation, boxes 

defensively for a while, 

 gathers strength and looks 

for openings. 

A smack in the head
letter from the Ceo:
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product line that make us robust and attrac-
tive regardless of economic cycles.

Looking	for	openings	
The experienced boxer knows that when your 
opponent thinks you’re exhausted he will 
lower his guard, creating openings. Following 
reorganising and extensive cost cutting sim-
tronics is beginning to getting in shape. we 
have adapted to a reduced demand, and are 
prepared for a continued long and hard match. 

At the same time, we believe that many of 
the projects postponed in 2009 will surface. 
simtronics’ order backlog and pipeline of 
potential orders are strong indicators that 
the demand will pick up, but perhaps not as 
early in the year as we had hoped. we see a 
clear trend towards a preference for systems 
suppliers rather than component vendors, 
a development highly beneficial to our busi-
ness concept. in other words: the openings 
have been identified and our deliveries of 
turn key systems in the middle east we 
believe confirm that.

An	endurance	test	
our ambition when we started out as an 
independent company three years ago was 
to build an internationally leading player in 
the fire safety industry. we even saw that we 
could be able to change and consolidate the 
industry. The ambition is still alive and valid. 
growth and restructuring remains on our 
agenda, and this strategy will be pursued 
when the time is right. 

At the end of this match, i am confident that 
simtronic’s arm will be raised in the air by 
the referee. but our victory is not likely to be 
a knockout. The markets remain challenging 
and represent a considerable endurance test. 

Rune	Martini
Chief executive officer

Rune martini
President and Ceo
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Equity	and	dividends
simtronics values the importance of a strong 
balance sheet with sufficient equity. 

The Company is currently in a period of 
strong growth, organically as well as through 
acquisitions. The board intends to use 
simtronics’ financial results and excess 
 liquidity to invest in further growth. The 
board does not foresee dividend in the near 
future.

in considering dividend payments in the 
longer perspective, the board will evaluate 
the Company’s dividend capacity, the need 
for maintaining a responsible level of equity 
and the financial resources needed for future 
growth. According to the norwegian public 
limited liability companies’ act, the basis 
for determining the dividend capacity is 
the  equity available for distribution («free» 
 equity) in the parent company simtronics AsA. 

Equal	treatment	of	shareholders	
simtronics has only one class of shares 
and all shareholders have the same rights; 
one share qualifies for one vote at general 
meetings. 

All shares are publicly traded at the oslo 
stock exchange and there are no trade 
barriers. All simtronics shareholders are 
entitled to the same dividend payments, and 
have equal rights in the event of share capital 
increases (unless waived by the general 
meeting).

integrity, transparency and equal treatment of all shareholders  

are cornerstones of simtronics’ corporate governance 

 principles. based on an industrial perspective on all company  

activities, simtronics’ main focus is to deliver value to its 

shareholders.

Corporate governance
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The Company has currently no share buy-
back programme and does not trade in own 
shares. 

Inside	information
simtronics emphasizes equal treatment 
of shareholders and has a special focus 
on transparency when it comes to price 
sensitive information. inside information is 
disclosed to the general public as required 
by oslo stock exchange regulations. in order 
to enable the market to fully understand 
and evaluate the Company, information is 
disclosed as early as practically possible. All 
disclosed information is made available to 
the entire market simultaneously through 
efficient communication channels.

Responsibility for the Company’s investor 
relations rests with the Ceo. 

General	Meetings
The Company’s shareholder meetings are 
open to all shareholders. shareholders can 
be represented either in person or through a 
proxy holder. Participation or voting through 
the internet is not possible. 

There are no ownership limitations and no 
known shareholder agreements. The notice 
of the shareholder meeting will be distrib-
uted with 14 days prior notice, in accordance 
with norwegian legislation. minutes of gen-
eral meetings are made available through 
the stock exchange information system and 
on the Company’s web site.

Board	nomination	and	remuneration	
The current board of directors was nominat-
ed by the Company’s previous owner, simrad 
optronics AsA, prior to the de-merger and 
listing of simtronics AsA in january 2007. 
The election period for all board members 
ends in 2011.

A procedure for nomination of board mem-
bers, in keeping with good corporate gover-
nance practice, will be established prior to 
the 2009 general meeting.

The board members’ remuneration is 
decided by the Annual general meeting. 
Remuneration of the board members is at 
a competitive level in order to ensure the 
desired composition of the board. The board 
comprises three shareholder-elected mem-
bers, who have been elected for a two year 
period by the Agm and one representative 
from the employees. details of remuneration 
to the board for 2009 are described in the 
notes to the financial statement.

simtronics AsA is a young company with 
significant organic growth in a market with 
attractive consolidation opportunities. This 
requires active participation from our board. 
To compensate for this, a modest stock 
 option programme for external board mem-
bers has been established. This programme 
is described in the notes to the financial 
statement.
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Board	of	Directors
simtronics AsA does not have a corporate 
assembly and the members of the board 
are elected by the shareholders in the Agm. 
The Company aims to ensure a balanced 
composition of the board taking into account 
the competence, experience and relevant 
background of the individuals as well as 
legal requirements. it is also desirable 
that the structure of the board of directors 
reflects both the ownership of the Company 
as well as the need for neutral, independent 
representation without specific shareholder 
affiliation. 

simtronics’ executive management is not 
represented on the board. 

The board of directors receives a monthly 
report on the Company’s financial perfor-
mance. The board reviews the Company’s 
financial and operational performance and fi-
nancial status in bi-monthly board meetings. 
The board is involved in acquisitions and 
other significant projects at an early stage 
and reviews the Company’s strategy at least 
once a year.

Risk	management	and	internal	control
Risk management and internal control is 
performed through various processes within 
the Company, both on a board level and in 
the daily management of the Company. 
An annual planning and budgeting process 
which ends with a budget approved by the 
board sets the framework for the coming 

year. in this process, the board carries out 
a review of the Company’s most important 
areas of exposure to risk. Annually, the 
board approves a proposal for the Annual 
Report and dividend payment to the general 
meeting. Risk management and internal 
control on a management level is carried 
out through monthly reviews of financial 
performance.

Financial risk management and internal 
control procedures are carried out both on 
a group level and in each subsidiary. The 
Company has established financial control 
guidelines and procedures for this purpose. 

Remuneration	of	the	executive	management
The remuneration of simtronics’ President 
and Ceo is decided by the board. The remu-
neration of the other members of the execu-
tive team is decided by the Ceo and reported 
to the board. The remuneration is based on 
a fixed as well as variable elements. The 
variable elements reflect the Company’s 
financial and operational performance. For 
further information we refer to the notes to 
the financial statement.

Take-overs
The board’s primary objective is to deliver 
the best possible long term return on invest-
ment for our shareholders. unless specific 
conditions apply, the board will not prevent 
or make obstacles in the event that a bid is 
made for the Company or its shares. in such 
situations, the board will evaluate the offer(s) 

and make a statement which is communi-
cated to the shareholders. The final decision 
is made by the shareholders.

Auditor
simtronics uses the same firm of auditors 
in the parent company and all subsidiaries 
of significance. To the extent that it is not in 
conflict with the independence regulations, 
the auditors are also used as advisors for 
financial due diligence in connection with the 
acquisition of new businesses and in con-
nection with the preparation of tax returns 
and tax advice in general. The auditors are 
not used as advisors for strategic issues or 
in connection with operational tasks for the 
Company. 

The audit fees are approved at the Annual 
general meeting and are described in the 
notes to the financial statements.
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The board of directors

John	Afseth
Chairman

dr. Afseth has worked as vice President of 
marketing and business development of 
Photocure AsA in oslo since 1998. Prior 
to this he worked as a general manager 
at  Abbot labs in denmark, norway and 
iceland in the period 1995 to 1997. he was 
the managing director of medinnova in the 
period from 1992 to 1995. dr. Afseth started 
his career in business by taking a marketing  
manager position at dynal As in oslo in 
1986 where he worked until 1992. before his 
industrial career, dr. Afseth had an academic 
career as Associate Professor in micro-
biology at the university of oslo and holds a 
Phd from this institution. 

Currently dr. Afseth serves as Chairman of 
the board of Carpe diem Afseth As, verdispar 
baltic development Property i As, emerging 
europe Commercial Properties As, Playsafe 
holding As and a board member of verdispar 
baltic development Property ii As as well of 
verdispar baltic sea Poperties As.

Tore	Amundsen
Board	Member

mr. Amundsen was Ceo of simrad optronics  
from 1999 to 2007 and is now managing 
director of Co2 Technology Centre mongstad, 
a research facility owned by the norwegian 
state, statoil and shell. before this, mr. 
Amundsen held several leading positions 
within kværner. Among other things, he 
was responsible for kværner’s activities in 
China, and Ceo of kværner energy As. mr. 
Amundsen is educated from the norwegian 
school of economics and business Adminis-
tration (nhh) in 1975, and also has additional 
education within project management and 
strategy. he has been a board member of 
nho and Tbl.

Valborg	Lundegaard
Board	Member

valborg lundegaard has more than 20 years 
experience from the oil and gas industry and 
has held a number of key positions in Aker 
solutions. her experience includes both 
corporate and project management, interna-
tional business development and a number 
of large field development projects. Currently 
she is President of Aker engineering & Tech-
nology with 2500 employees. 
 
valborg lundegaard is a member of the 
board of simtronics and songa offshore;  both 
listed on the norwegian stock  exchange. 
she is also a member of the board of Aker 
 offshore Partner As and Aker  Powergas 
Private limited in india.
 
valborg lundegaard graduated from the 
norwegian institute of Technology (nTh) 
Chemical engineering in 1983. 
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Hans	Inge	Nerby
Board	Member	(Employee	representative)	

mr nerby works in the research and develop-
ment department as a Project manager for 
gas detector development projects. he has 
been with the company since 2003 and has 
been involved in many technology projects 
and business processes.

mr nerby holds his engineering degrees  
from oslo university College and the 
 norwegian university of science and 
 Technology in offshore technology and 
 mechanics, respectively. he started his 
career as a development engineer in the 
defense and aerospace industry at eidsvoll 
electronics. before joining simrad optronics, 
mr nerby worked in the aluminium industry  
as a development engineer and project 
 manager at hydro Automotive structures.

hans inge nerby
board member 
(employee representative) 

Tore Amundsen
board member

valborg lundegaard
board member

john Afseth
Chairman
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The board of directors’ Report

simtronics is organized in two business 
areas; detection systems and extinguishing 
solutions. The Company is headquartered in 
oslo, norway, and is listed on the oslo stock 
exchange (ticker: simTRo). 

highlights for 2009 were:

 ·  Challenging market situation, a number of 
projects postponed

 ·  setback in the nitrogen generator product 
line

 ·  Results affected by restructuring of the 
extinguishing solutions business area

 ·  solid performance by the detection sys-
tems business area

 ·  strong order flow maintained
 ·  Proposed acquisition of the electroTech 

division of Technor failed to get sufficient 
shareholder approval

Financial	results
The simtronics group posted operating 
income of nok 288.5 million in 2009, which is 
a 20 per cent decline from the 2008 operating 
income of nok 359.7 million. The decline 
in 2009 came after two years of very strong 
sales growth for simtronics. 

The group’s operating expenses were 
reduced by 10 per cent in 2009, resulting in 
an ebiTdA before restructuring charges of 
nok-4.1 million, down from an ebiTdA of 
nok 34.6 million the previous year. non-re-
curring expenses and restructuring charges 
(see detailed information below) totaled 
nok 12.6 million (nok 15.6 million if non-
recurring depreciation of nok 3 million is 
included), bringing the ebiTdA to nok -16.7 
million for the year.

earnings before taxes were nok -43.4 million 

(2008: nok 16.7 million) and net profit for the 
year ended at nok -41.9 million in 2009, com-
pared to nok 12.1 million the previous year.

The challenging market situation and the 
substantial non-recurring costs put pressure 
on simtronics’ financial basis in 2009. At the 
end of the year, the Company was in breach 
with one of the bank loan covenants. The 
bank has issued a covenant waiver for the 
second half of 2009 and 2010. see note 15 for 
further information.

in order to further secure its financial 
platform, simtronics in november obtained 
a nok 71.6 million convertible loan from its 
largest shareholder, Autronica Fire & secu-
rity As. For details on this financing, please 
refer to note 27 in the accounts. simtron-
ics AsA has received a confirmation from 
Autronica Fire & security As, that they do 
not consider simtronics AsA to be in breach 
with the covenants, as far as dnb noR has 
given a waiver. The financing togheter with 
the positive cash flow from operations, the 
Company’s cash flow improved compared to 
the previous year.

The group’s non current assets were nok 
211.7 million (including nok 30 million in 
restricted cash) at the end of 2009, compared 
to nok 235.3 million the previous year. Cur-
rent assets were nok 158.9 million (2008: 
nok 195.0 million). Total equity was reduced 
to nok 112.2 million from nok 160.4 million 
the previous year.

simtronics is a fire and gas safety group providing technology 

and expertise aimed at preventing disasters. The Company’s 

products represent the most accurate, reliable and robust safety 

technology available and are used by the oil and gas industry as 

well as in shipping, process industries and a growing number 

of other applications. simtronics serves customers all over the 

world from its operations in europe and Asia.
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As a consequence of the breach with one 
of the covenants, long term bank debt was 
transferred to short term liabilities. Total 
liabilities at the end of 2009 were nok 258.4 
million, compared to nok 269.9 million the 
previous year. The group’s equity ratio at the 
end of 2009 was 30 per cent, compared to 37 
per cent in 2008.

it has not been identified any material events 
after the reporting date 31 december 2009 
that could potentially affect the Company’s 
financial position

The parent company posted operating in-
come of nok 77.9 million in 2009, compared 
to nok 72.1 million in 2008. The Company’s 
ebiTdA was nok -11.2 million (2008: nok 
-2.6 million). All operational costs related 
to group management and ownership of 
subsidiaries has been carried by the parent 
company. 

net loss for simtronics AsA for 2009 was 
nok 25.5 million (2008: nok -3.4 million).

Unsuccessful	acquisition	attempt
in April, the board of directors proposed 
an acquisition of the electroTech division in 
Technor to simtronics’ extraordinary general 
meeting. The transaction did however fail 
to obtain the necessary majority in the egm 
held in may, and was subsequently cancelled. 
The process of acquiring Technor resulted in 
a non-recurring cost of nok 7.2 million.

Proposed	coverage	of	the	2009	loss
The board of directors proposes that the loss 
for 2009 is covered as follows:

From other paid in capital -4 785 000
From share premium reserve -20 672 000
Total	 -25	457	000

Going	concern
The financial statements have been prepared 
under the going concern principle. The profit 
expectations for 2010, the group’s financial 
position, the restructuring initiatives imple-
mented and a cost cutting program for 2010, 
as well as simtronics’ unique technology and 
product offering, have been used as a basis 
for this assessment.

The group had at the end of 2009 a strong 
order backlog of nok 181 million. The re-
duced sales in 2009 were largely due to short 
term project postponements and a strongly 
reduced nitrogen generator market. based 
on an assessment of the order backlog, the 
order pipeline available to the group and 
dialogue with key customers, the board 
feels confident that sales will increase in 
2010. 80 per cent of the negative ebiTdA 
in 2009 refers to non-recurring expenses; 
restructuring charges and the unsuccessful 
acquisition attempt. Furthermore, the nega-
tive earnings in operations are attributable 
to one single product line; nitrogen genera-
tors. The restructurings undertaken in 2009 
have eliminated most of the financial risks in 
this product line, leaving a significant upside 

potential when markets turn. simtronics’ 
other operations performed well in 2009, the 
detection systems business area even had its 
best year ever. 

simtronics group has during 2009 been 
awarded several large contracts for delivery 
of active fire fighting systems for custom-
ers in the middle east. The first contracts 
awarded in the summer 2009 were based 
on payment at completion. Payment was 
secured through letter of Credits. however 
this payment structure has been a strain 
on the group’s cash flow, and will continue 
for the first three quarters of 2010. Actions 
have been implemented to better harmonize 
payments from customer with payment to 
vendors.
 
The large contracts awarded the group 
in 2010 is based on payment according to 
milestones in the projects. in this manner 
it is expected that the new projects will not 
strain the cash flow as in 2009. The liquidity 
situation is expected to be improved at the 
end of 2010.

in addition to the restructuring initiatives 
taken in 2009, a cost cutting programme is 
being implemented with a target of a 15 per 
cent reduction in operating costs in 2010. 
in the board’s opinion, the convertible loan 
secured in 2009, together with positive cash 
flow from the operations, will secure suffi-
cient liquidity in 2010, enabling the Company 
to meet its financial obligations. 
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The board appreciates the understanding 
with which simtronics has been met by dnb 
noR. simtronics expects to be able to meet 
all covenant requirements by 4’th quarter 
2010. The board fully acknowledges the seri-
ousness of simtronics not being able to meet 
the requirements sooner, but would also like 
to point out that the industrial and financial 
fundamentals of simtronics are positive.

in addition to the abovementioned actions, 
the board of directors also considers other 
measures to secure further financing for 
further growth, and to improve the working 
capital. Among the considered actions will 
be to ask the 2010 Annual general meeting 
for authority to increase the companys share 
capital.

The board of directors confirm in this man-
ner the foundation for the use of the condi-
tion going concern is present.

Market	developments
simtronics estimates that the global market 
for the group’s products represent a total 
value of us $ 5-6 billion, of which simtronics 
addresses markets representing a demand 
of us $ 2-3 billion per year. Annual growth 
rate in these markets has been estimated at 
3-5% over recent years. despite the current 
economic downturn, new regulatory initiatives 
and the increased focus on safety will remain 
key drivers to renewed growth in this market.

The economic recession in 2008 and 2009 led 
to a general slowdown also in simtronics’ 
markets. The general trend was that projects 
were postponed awaiting improved market 
conditions. For those projects being realized, 
purchasing decisions were taken as late as 
possible. 

The standstill in the international shipbuild-
ing industry had a substantial impact on 
simtronics, in particular in the nitrogen 
generator segment. 

The softening of the project market was 
partly offset by simtronics’ improved position 
in the retrofit and maintenance markets. 
These are markets less vulnerable to shifting 
business cycles. 

The trend towards an increasing demand for 
systems suppliers rather than component 
vendors continued also in 2009. For simtronics, 
the year represented a breakthrough as a 
solutions supplier in the middle east.

Operations
2009 was a year of consolidation, restructur-
ing and cost cutting for simtronics. however, 
the group’s order pipeline and order intake 
remained satisfactory. The business areas 
performed very unevenly in 2009, with detec-
tion systems having its best year ever while 
extinguishing solutions (including nitrogen 
generators) did not perform well.

The two previous years marked a period 
of growth and expansion for simtronics. 

Geographical	distributionCustomer	segmentsBusiness	areas

n europe excl. norway (44%)
n norway (33%)
n Asia/Pacific (19%) 
n other (4%)

n oil and gas (44%)
n industry (42%)
n martitime (8%)

n FPso (3%)
n other (3%)

n detection (36%)
n extinguishing (64%)

Customer business area Time of delivery Contract value (mnok)

Turn key project (middle east) extinguishing solutions 1h 2010 34.0

nF3 Revamp (middle east) detection and extinguishing 1h 2010 7.0

Chemical Plant (Algeria) detection systems 2h 2009 - 1h 2010 6.9

Alvheim FPso (norway) extinguishing solutions 2009 6.2

industry project (Trinidad) extinguishing solutions 2009 6.0

Key	contracts	in	2009	were	(value	in	excess	of	NOK	5	million):
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during 2007 and 2008 the group’s revenues 
increased both through acquisitions and 
organic growth, simtronics established itself 
as a multi products safety group and opera-
tions were expanded to Asia.

order intake remained strong also in 2009. 
order intake during the year was nok 330 
million, which represents 114 per cent of 
2009 revenues. statoil issued a new tender 
including both old statoil and hydro rigs at 
the end of 2009 and wme has reduced the 
back-log accordingly with nok 30 million. 
At the end of the year, simtronics enjoyed 
in spite of this an order backlog of nok 181 
million, which was 3 million more than the 
backlog one year earlier. 

The oil and gas industry, process and general 
industries and the maritime sector are sim-
tronics’ primary customer groups. in 2009 
the oil and gas industry was simtronics larg-
est customer segment, representing 44 per 
cent of sales. Process and general industries 
represented 42 per cent of the sales while 
the maritime sector (excl. FPsos) made up 8 
per cent. Petrochemical industries repre-
sented 4 per cent and the space and nuclear 
power plants industry made up 3 per cent.

in 2009 simtronics’ sales declined in all main 
markets. The group’s norwegian home mar-
ket saw the steepest decline, but also sales 
in Asia were significantly reduced. europe 
outside norway remains simtronics’ largest 
market area with 44 per cent of the group’s 

total sales. norway represented 33 per cent 
of 2009 sales while Asia represented 19 per 
cent of the revenues in 2009.

Detection	systems
detection systems is simtronics’ traditional 
business and represented 36 per cent of 
the group’s total sales in 2009. The detec-
tion systems business area had nok 103.9 
million in sales and an ebiTdA of nok 14.5 
million, corresponding to an ebiTdA margin 
of 9.7 per cent. This made 2009 the best year 
ever for the detection systems business. 
europe including norway and the middle 
east are important markets for this business 
area.

Extinguishing	solutions	
The extinguishing solutions business area 
includes the companies water mist engi-
neering, the former eTech, Fire eater and 
simtronics Fire & gas Pte. ltd (singapore). 
in 2009 the business area represented 64 
per cent of the group’s total revenues. The 
extinguishing solutions business area posted 
sales of nok 184.5 million and an ebiTdA of 
nok -8.5 million after non-recurring costs 
in 2009. 

The extinguishing solutions business area 
experienced a difficult market in 2009, nota-
bly the nitrogen generator segment almost 
collapsed as a result of the standstill in Asian 
shipbuilding. The loss in the extinguishing 
solutions business area is mainly attribut-
able to this segment. 

in order to reduce costs and improve opera-
tional efficiency, the two kristiansand based 
companies water mist engineering and 
eTech were merged and co-located in 2009, 
while the korea branch was shut down due to 
unsatisfactory performance. The number of 
employees was also reduced in the process. 
in total, the extinguishing solutions business 
area booked nok 8.4 million in non-recur-
ring restructuring costs in 2009.

in spite of the challenging market conditions 
simtronics Fire & gas Pte. ltd performed 
well in its first full year of operation and 
secured several attractive contracts. 

Organization
in order to streamline business processes 
and also maintain a competitive cost level, 
the number of business areas was reduced 
from three to two in 2009. The former busi-
ness area Fire prevention systems became 
part of the extinguishing solutions business 
area.

detection systems represents the original 
simtronics prior to the 2007/2008 acquisi-
tions. The business area has manufacturing 
facilities in norway and France. 

extinguishing solutions consists of water 
mist engineering As, Fire eater A/s and 
simtronics Fire & gas Pte. ltd. The former 
eTech is now a part of water mist engineer-
ing. The business area has manufacturing in 
norway, denmark and singapore.

Sales	development Simtronics	development

n 2008
n 2009

n sales (left axis)
n ebiTdA (right axis)
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in addition to sales resources in norway, 
denmark, France, singapore and dubai, 
simtronics operates sales offices in hungary, 
Poland, the Czech Republic and Russia 
through our Fire eater subsidiary.

Research	and	development
simtronics’ products represent state-of-the-
art safety technology. Considerable resourc-
es are spent on developing new products and 
modifying existing technology. nok 11.6 mil-
lion were spent on R&d in 2009, representing 
4 per cent of total sales. in 2008 R&d costs 
were nok 10.3 million.
 
Employees	and	the	environment
Relying on highly skilled and motivated 
employees to succeed, simtronics is con-
stantly working to maintain an attractive and 
rewarding working environment. At the end 
of 2009, 161 employees worked in simtronics 
group (2008: 170 employees). 

Although no employees undertake hazard-
ous tasks at simtronics, the company is 
committed to maintaining high standards for 
health, environment and safety. The group’s 
activities do not represent dangers to the 
environment in any way. 

The registered level of absence during 2009 
was 3.9 per cent (2008: 6.6 per cent). no ac-
cidents or injuries occurred during the year. 

simtronics strives to be an equal opportuni-
ty employer with regards to gender and eth-
nic background. 50 per cent of the employ-
ees are women. simtronics will continue to 
encourage a good gender balance among its 
employees and maintains an equal salary 
policy. The board of directors has a bal-
anced representation of both genders, as 
required by norwegian company law.

Risk	factors
simtronics is subject to fluctuations in 
investments made by our main customer 
groups; the oil and gas industry, process 
industries and the maritime sector. however, 
simtronics’ growth into a broader product 
offering and a wider portfolio of custom-
ers segments has contributed to reduced 
overall risk. Also, the move into the retrofit 
and maintenance markets has mitigated 
the group’s exposure to changing economic 
cycles.

All key technologies creating the basis for 
simtronics’ products are subject to
international iP protection to the extent 
deemed necessary for our business opera-
tions. our iP rights are considered adequate 
and have not been challenged, but such 
pcocesses can not be excluded. 

Cost and organizational control are key 
issues in a period of strong growth. As a gen-
eral rule, growth increases the risk of higher 
costs and organisational disruption. growth 
also requires development of the Company’s 
administrative systems and routines. Further 
development of simtronics’ business will 
place significant demands on its manage-
ment, engineering, support, operations, 
legal, accounting, sales and marketing 
personnel and other resources. 

The Company’s competitors will always be 
a possible threat to the Company’s perfor-
mance. The Company operates in interna-
tional markets with open competition. should 
a large competitor enter the market niches 
currently occupied by simtronics, reduced 
profitability could be an effect.
The consolidated accounts are reported in 
nok. Revenue is mainly generated in nok, 
usd, euR and dkk while costs mainly are in 

nok and local currencies. The currency risk 
is considered at par with normal currency 
risk for an international technology products 
company. however, the Company is actively 
mitigating the risk in order to ensure the 
best possible position.

Corporate	governance
simtronics’ corporate governance policies 
are outlined in a separate section of this An-
nual report, see page 9.

Outlook	for	2010
The continued uncertainty seen in global 
markets obviously affects also simtronics. 
shipbuilding and investment levels in the oil 
and gas industry as well as the processing 
industries are expected to remain low for 
some time. 

however, the group’s order portfolio and 
pipeline suggest that simtronics’ revenues 
will experience growth throughout 2010. The 
detection systems business area remains 
positive and the extinguishing solutions 
business area has been restructured in 2009. 
A cost reduction program has been initiated 
with the target of reducing fixed costs with 15 
per cent within 2010. we are confident that 
these factors combined will enable simtron-
ics to be a profitable company in 2010.

Furthermore, simtronics’ efforts to improve 
operational efficiency continue. sourcing, 
sales processes and organizational struc-
tures are constantly evaluated and improved. 

oslo, 29 April 2010
The board of directors of simtronics AsA

John	Afseth
Chairman of the board

Tore	Amundsen
member of the board

Valborg	Lundegaard
member of the board

Hans	Inge	Nerby
member of the board

Rune	Martini
President and Ceo
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income statement

 simtronics AsA  simtronics group 

2009 2008 notes 2009 2008

  Figures in nok 1000

 77 852  72 047  sales revenues 2, 8  288 475  359 712 

	77	852	 	72	047	 	Total	operating	income	 	288	475	 	359	712	

 44 077  39 297  Cost of materials 6  143 355  197 432 

 24 682  21 975  Payroll and related cost 11, 19  97 237  76 464 

 2 517  1 003  depreciation 9, 10  13 666  9 075 

 20 272  13 419  other operating expenses 25  64 583  51 226 

	91	548	 	75	694	 	Total	operating	expenses	 	318	841	 	334	197	

	(13	697) 	(3	647) 	Profit	(loss)	from	operations	 	(30	366) 	25	515	

 3 108  2 713  interest income 7  3 314  4 220 

 9 580  9 019  other financial income 7  8 877  11 580 

 11 046  8 920  interest expense 7  12 729  11 867 

 10 419  3 446  other financial expense 7  12 452  12 762 

	(8	777) 	(634) 	Net	financial	costs	 	(12	991) 	(8	829)

	(22	474) 	(4	281) 	Profit	(loss)	before	tax	 	(43	357) 	16	686	

 2 984  (902)  income tax expense (benefit) 20  (1 488)  4 508 

	(25	457) 	(3	379) 	Profit	(loss)	after	tax	 	(41	869) 	12	177	

 other income and expenses 

 -  -  Conversion differenses 17  (19 747)  25 467 

	-	 	-	 	Total	other	income	and	expenses	 	(19	747) 	25	467	

	(25	457) 	(3	379) 	Total	profit	(loss)	 17 	(61	616) 	37	644	

 Profit (loss) after tax owner distribution 

 shareholders of the parent company 17  (44 555)  8 973 

 minority interest 17  2 685  3 204 

	Profit	(loss)	after	tax	 	(41	869) 	12	177	

	Total	Profit	(loss)	owner	distribution	

 shareholders of the parent company 17  (58 091)  27 445 

 minority interest 17  (3 526)  10 199 

	Profit	(loss)	after	tax	 	(61	616) 	37	644	

	Distribution	of	year’s	result	

 (4 785)  (1 433)  Paid-in capital 17

 (20 672)  (2 483)  share premium reserve 17

 -  537  other equity 17

	(25	457) 	(3	379) 	Total	distributed	

 basic earnings per share 17  (0.65)  0.14 

 diluted earnings per share 17  (0.65)  0.13
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balance sheet

 simtronics AsA  simtronics group 

31.12.2009 31.12.2008 notes 31.12.2009 31.12.2008

  Figures in nok 1000

	ASSETS	

	Intangible	assets	

 1 060  3 959  deferred tax asset 21  6 304  4 695 

 goodwill 9  87 623  106 980 

 17 550  12 676  development costs 9  48 283  50 913 

 276  1 269  other intangible assets 9  23 922  31 761 

	18	885	 	17	904	 	Total	intangible	fixed	assets	 	166	132	 	194	349	

 5 346  3 876  Property, plant and equipment 10  11 762  8 791 

	5	346	 	3	876	 	Total	tangible	fixed	assets	 	11	762	 	8	791	

 125  828  long term receivables 5  3 829  1 406 

 26 348  22 660  long term receivables - intra group 5  -  - 

 137 360  130 251  investments in subsidiaries 5, 14  -  1 150 

 30 000  30 000  Restricted cash reserves 5, 23  30 000  30 000 

	193	834	 	183	739	 	Total	financial	non-current	assets	 	33	829	 	32	556	

	218	065	 	205	519	 	Total	fixed	assets	 	211	723	 	235	696	

 20 292  19 211  inventories 6  60 946  62 587 

 11 548  16 714  Accounts receivables 3, 18  59 949  84 163 

 7 372  14 351  Accounts receivables - intra group 3  -  - 

 -  -  unbilled revenue from long-term contracts 3, 8  17 175  34 333 

 1 619  1 419  other receivables 3  10 339  5 299 

	20	540	 	32	485	 	Total	receivables	 	87	463	 	123	795	

 1 413  4 058  Cash and cash equivalents 23  10 498  8 224 

	42	245	 	55	754	 	Total	current	assets	 	158	907	 	194	606	

	260	310	 	261	273	 	TOTAL	ASSETS	 	370	630	 	430	302	
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 simtronics AsA  simtronics group 

31.12.2009 31.12.2008 notes 31.12.2009 31.12.2008

 Figures in nok 1000

	EQUITY	AND	LIABILITIES	

	Equity	

 10 153  9 509  share capital 17  10 153  9 509 

 71 769  79 735  share premium reserve 17  71 769  79 735 

	81	922	 	89	244	 	Total	paid-in	capital	 	81	922	 	89	244	

 -  -  Retained earnings 17  4 949  37 583 

 -  -  minority interest 17  25 338  33 573 

	-	 	-	 	Total	other	capital	 	30	288	 	71	156	

	81	922	 	89	244	 	Total	equity	 	112	209	 	160	400	

 64 235  -  Convertible loan 17, 27  64 235  - 

	Non-current	liabilities	

 -  64 295  liabilities to financial institutions 15  -  64 307 

 -  -  other interest-bearing liabilities 15  4 265  4 936 

 518  1 433  Pension liabilities 19  1 567  2 262 

 1 060  -  deferred tax liabilities 21  11 540  14 689 

 -  30 000  other non-current liabilities  -  30 964 

	1	578	 	95	728	 	Total	non-current	liabilities	 	17	372	 	117	158	

	Current	liabilities	

 83 100  45 005  liabilities to financial institutions 4, 15  89 150  63 234 

 11 908  11 670  Accounts payables 4  41 672  45 040 

 3 511  2 574  Accounts payables intra group 4  -  - 

 3 600  1 690  Public duties payable 4  17 193  13 033 

 -  -  Taxes payable 4  2 066  (787)

 -  -  Advance payments from customers 4  2 114  - 

 100  -  Provisions 4, 22  1 172  964 

 10 356  15 360  other short-term liabilities 4  23 445  31 260 

	112	576	 	76	300	 	Total	current	liabilities	 	176	813	 	152	744	

	178	389	 	172	028	 	Total	liabilities	 	258	420	 	269	902	

	260	310	 	261	273	 	TOTAL	EQUITY	AND	LIABILITIES	 	370	630	 	430	302	

oslo, 29 April 2010
The board of directors of simtronics AsA

John	Afseth
Chairman of the board

Tore	Amundsen
member of the board

Valborg	Lundegaard
member of the board

Hans	Inge	Nerby
member of the board

Rune	Martini
President and Ceo
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statement of Cash Flow

 simtronics AsA  simtronics group 

2009 2008 2009 2008

  Figures in nok 1000

	Cash	flow	from	operating	activities	

 (22 474)  (4 281)  Profit before tax  (43 357)  16 686 

 1 975  849  depreciation  8 341  5 415 

 542  154  depreciation of capitalised development costs  5 842  3 660 

 (915)  1 114  difference between pension costs and pensions paid  (695)  1 274 

 (1 081)  (9 918)  Changes in inventory  1 757  (2 391)

 12 145  (13 465)  Changes in account receivables  24 239  (39 223)

 1 175  6 602  Changes in account payable  (4 288)  (259)

 -  -  Changes in accrued, not invoiced revenue  17 158  (17 480)

 6 686  9 705  Changes in other balance sheet items  (1 906)  11 144 

 -  -  Taxes paid in this period  584  (3 565)

 -  -  effect of changes in exchange rates  (1 617)  6 449 

 (1 947)  (9 240)  net cash flow from operating activities  6 056  (18 290)

	Cash	flow	from	investing	activities	

 (2 464)  (2 988)  Acquisition of property, plant and equipment  (9 067)  (10 063)

 (5 415)  (5 294)  Capitalized development costs  (7 138)  (7 605)

 (30 959)  (53 714)  Acquisition of subsidiaries, net of cash acquired  (10 169)  (53 714)

	(38	838) 	(61	996) 	Net	Cash	flow	from	investing	activities	 	(26	374) 	(71	382)

	Cash	flow	from	financing	activities	

 -  -  net proceeds from the issue of shared capital  -  - 

 -  -  Payment of dividend to minority  (4 709) -

 (2 986)  (22 206)  Changes in short-term loan to subsidiaries  -  - 

 67 326  40 630  Payment from increased long-term borrowings  67 326  38 231 

 (36 878)  -  Payment from decreased long-term borrowings  (37 975)  - 

 10 678  27 669  net change in overdraft facility and other short-term financing  (2 051)  20 368 

 38 140  46 093  net cash flow from financing activities  22 591  58 599 

 (2 645)  (25 143)  net change in cash and cash equivalents  2 273  (31 073)

 34 058  59 201  Cash and cash equivalents 1 january  38 225  69 298 

 31 413  34 058  Cash and cash equivalents 31 december 1  40 498  38 225 
     
1) one has chosen to incorporate bank deposits in the cash flow statement, presented as long term bank deposits with restrictions, with a total of nok 30 000 for simtronics AsA (2008: nok 

30 000) and nok 30 000 for simtronics group (2008: nok 30 000). see note 23 
2) in Acquisition of subsidiaries and other investments, the cost of nok 7.200 related to the rejected transaction of the electrotech division of Technor is included. see note 25.
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statement of Changes

simtronics AsA
share 

capital

share 
premium 

reserve
other paid-

in capital

Currency 
translation
differences

Retained
earnings Total equity

Figures in Tnok 

Balance	as	at	01	January	2008	 	8	879	 	62	702	 	-	 	(537) 	71	043	

Profit (loss) after tax  (2 483)  (1 433)  537  (3 379)

 - 

Transaction with owners  - 

share issue through debt conversion  630  19 516  20 146 

share-based payment expense  1 433  1 433 

Balance	as	at	31	December	2008	 	9	509	 	79	735	 	-	 	-	 	-	 	89	244	

Profit (loss) after tax  (20 672)  (4 785)  (25 457)

Transaction with owners  - 

share issue through debt conversion  644  12 706  13 350 

equity component convertible loan  2 500  2 500 

share-based payment expense  2 285  2 285 

Balance	as	at	31	December	2009	 	10	153	 	71	769	 	-	 	-	 	-	 	81	922	

simtronics group
share 

capital

share 
premium 

reserve
other paid-

in capital

Currency 
translation 
differences

Retained
earnings

Total majority
interest equity

minority
interests Total equity

Figures in Tnok 

Balance	as	at	01	January	2008	 	8	879	 	62	702	 	(438) 	6	660	 	77	803	 	-	 	77	808	

Profit (loss) after tax  (2 483)  (1 433)  18 472  12 889  27 445  10 199  37 645 

 - 

minority interest from acqusition 
and dividend  -  23 374  23 374 

Transaction with owners  - 

share issue through debt conversion  630  19 516  20 146  20 146 

share-based payment expense  1 433  1 433  1 433 

Balance	as	at	31	December	2008	 	9	509	 	79	735	 	-	 	18	034	 	19	549	 	126	827	 	33	573	 	160	400	

Profit (loss) after tax  (20 672)  (4 785)  (13 536)  (19 098)  (58 091)  (3 526)  (61 616)

 - 

minority interest from acqusition 
and dividend  (4 709)  (4 709)

Transaction with owners 

share issue through debt conversion  644  12 706  13 350  13 350 

equity component convertible loan  2 500  2 500  2 500 

share-based payment expense  2 285  2 285  2 285 

Balance	as	at	31	December	2009	 	10	153	 	71	769	 	-	 	4	498	 	451	 	86	871	 	25	338	 	112	209	
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notes

Note 1 CoNsolidatioN aNd aCCouNtiNg 
priNCiples

Reporting	entity
simtronics AsA has its headquarters in oslo, 
norway. The company is engaged in the 
development, production and marketing of 
gas and flame detection systems. simtron-
ics AsA is the group’s parent company. As at 
31 december 2009 the group consists of two 
operating segments and the following legal 
entities.

Detection	systems:
simtronics AsA (oslo, norway)
simtronics sAs (Aubagne, France)

Extinguishing	solutions:
water mist engineering As (kristiansand, 
norway)
simtronics Fire & gas Pte. ltd. (singapore)
Fire eater A/s (hillerød, denmark), with 
subsidiaries
 · Fire eater norge As
 · Fire eater spol.s.r.o (Czech Republic )
 · Fire eater hungaria kft (hungary)
 · Fire eater Polska sp.z.o.o.
 · ineros ltd. (Russia)

Basis	of	preparation
The financial statements comprise the in-
come statement, balance sheet, statement of 
changes in equity, cash flow statement and 
notes to the accounts.

(a)	Statement	of	compliance	
The consolidated financial statements 
have been prepared in accordance with 
eu-adopted international Financial Report-
ing standards (iFRs) and accompanying 
interpretations, and the additional norwe-
gian disclosure requirements as required by 
the norwegian Accounting Act and by stock 
exchange rules and regulations, in effect at 
31 december 2009.

The proposed financial statements were 
approved by the board of directors and Ceo 
on 29 April 2010. The financial statements 
will be proposed for approval by the annual 
general assembly (Agm) 20. may 2010 for 
final approval.

(b)	Basis	of	preparation	of	the	accounts
The financial statements are prepared based 
on the fundamental principles governing his-
torical cost accounting, comparability, con-
tinued operations and consistency. exempt 
from the historic cost basis is the accounting 
for derivative financial instruments which 
are stated at their fair value through profit or 

loss. The preparation is based on the going 
concern assumption and is applied consist-
ently for all accounting periods presented in 
the consolidated financial statements.

Transactions are recorded at their value at 
the time of transaction. income is recognised 
at the time of delivery of goods or services 
sold. Costs are expensed in the same period 
as the income to which they relate is recognised.

(c)	Functional	currency	and	presentation	
currency
The financial statements are presented in 
nok, which is the parent company’s func-
tional currency, and the group’s presentation 
currency. All financial information presented 
in nok is rounded to the nearest thousand.

(d)	Use	of	estimates	and	judgements
The preparation of financial statements in 
compliance with iFRs requires manage-
ment to make judgements, estimates and 
assumptions that affect the application of 
policies and reported amounts of assets and 
liabilities, income and expenses.

estimates and underlying assumptions 
are based on historic experience and other 
factors considered reasonable under the 
circumstances. The estimates constitute 
the basis for the assessment of the net 
book value of assets and liabilities when 
these values can not be derived from other 
sources. Actual results may differ from these 
estimates.

estimates and underlying assumptions are 
reviewed on an ongoing basis. Changes in 
accounting estimates are recognised in the 
period in which the estimate is revised if 
the revision affects only that period. if the 
changes affect future periods, the effect of 
the changes is allocated between the current 
and future periods.

information about significant areas of esti-
mation uncertainty and critical judgements 
in applying accounting policies that may have 
material effect on the amount recognised in 
the financial statements, are described in the 
following notes:

note 8 revenue recognition for construc-
tion contracts

note 9 impairment test for intangible 
assets

note 13 measurement of share-based 
payments

note 19 measurement of defined benefit 
obligations

note 26 purchase price allocation on 
acquisitions (2008)

note 27 accounting for convertible loan

e)	Changes	in	accounting	policies
starting as of 1 january 2009 the company 
has changed its accounting principles in the 
following areas:

determination and presentation of operating 
segments
As of 1 january 2009 the group determines 
and presents operating segments based on 
the information that internally is provided to 
the Ceo, who is the group’s chief operating 
decision maker. This change in accounting  
policy is due to the adoption of iFRs 8 
operating segments. Previously operating 
segments were determined and presented 
in accordance with iAs 14 segment Report-
ing. The new accounting policy in respect of 
segment operating disclosures is presented 
as follows.

Comparative segment information has been 
re-presented in conformity with the transi-
tional requirements of such standard. since 
the change in accounting policy only impacts 
presentation and disclosure aspects, there is 
no impact on earnings per share. 

«An operating segment is a component of 
the group that engages in business activities 
from which it may earn revenues and incur 
expenses, including revenues and expenses 
that relate to transactions with any of the 
group’s other components. An operating 
segment’s operating results are reviewed 
regularly by the Ceo to make decisions about 
resources to be allocated to the segment 
and assess its performance, and for which 
discrete financial information is available. 
segment results that are reported to the Ceo 
include items directly attributable to a seg-
ment as well as those that can be allocated 
on a reasonable basis. unallocated items 
comprise mainly corporate assets (prima-
rily the Company’s headquarters), head 
office expenses, and income tax assets and 
 liabilities.»

segment capital expenditure is the total cost 
incurred during the period to acquire prop-
erty, plant and equipment, and intangible 
assets other than goodwill.

Presentation of financial statements
The group applies revised iAs 1 Presenta-
tion of Financial statements (2007), which 
became effective as of 1 january 2009. As 
a result, the group presents in the con-
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solidated statement of changes in equity all 
owner changes in equity, whereas all non-
owner changes in equity are presented in the 
consolidated statement of comprehensive 
income.

Comparative information has been re-
presented so that it also is in conformity with 
the revised standard. since the change in 
accounting policy only impacts presentation 
aspects, there is no impact on earnings per 
share.

Significant	accounting	policies
The accounting policies set out below have 
been applied consistently to all periods 
presented in these consolidated financial 
statements. The accounting policies have 
been applied consistently by group entities.

(a)	Basis	of	consolidation
Consolidated companies
The consolidated accounts include the parent 
company simtronics AsA and companies in 
which the parent company has a control-
ling influence. subsidiaries acquired or sold 
during the course of the year are included 
in the profit and loss statement as from the 
date of purchase, or up to and including the 
date of sale.

subsidiaries
subsidiaries are entities controlled by the 
group. Control exists when the group has the 
power to govern the financial and operating 
policies of an entity so as to obtain benefits 
from its activities. in assessing control, po-
tential voting rights that presently are exer-
cisable are taken into account. The financial 
statements of subsidiaries are included in 
the consolidated financial statements from 
the date that control commences until the 
date that control ceases.

shares in subsidiaries are eliminated in 
consolidation. The difference between the 
book value of shares in subsidiaries and 
book value of the subsidiaries’ equity at the 
time such shares were acquired is analyzed 
and posted to the balance sheet items to 
which the excess amounts relate. goodwill 
represents the excess of the purchase price 
paid for acquisitions above the fair value net 
assets acquired, and is tested for impairment 
at least on an annual basis.

Transactions eliminated on consolidation
intra-group balances, and any unrealised in-
come and expenses arising from intra-group 
transactions, are eliminated in preparing the 
consolidated financial statements.

minority interests
The minority interests share of the net profit 
and equity are classified as separate items in 
the income statement and balance sheet.

(b)	Foreign	currency
Foreign currency transactions
Transactions in foreign currency are trans-
lated at exchange rates at the date of the 
transactions. monetary assets and liabilities 
denominated in foreign currencies at the re-
porting date are translated to nok (the func-
tional currency) by using the exchange rate 
at the reporting date. Foreign exchange rate 
differences which occur at translation are 
recognised in the income statement. non-
monetary assets and liabilities denominated 
in foreign currencies that are measured at 
historical cost are translated at the exchange 
rate at the date of the transactions. Any non-
monetary assets and liabilities denominated 
in foreign currencies that are measured 
at fair value are translated to nok at the 
exchange rate at the date that the fair value 
was determined.

Foreign operations
The assets and liabilities for foreign op-
erations, including goodwill and fair value 
adjustments arising at consolidation, are 
translated to nok at exchange rates at the 
reporting date. The income and expenses of 
foreign operations are translated to nok at 
exchange rates at the date of the transac-
tions. Foreign exchange rate differences 
which arise as a result of translations are 
recognised directly in equity, as a sepa-
rate component of equity. when a foreign 
operation is disposed of, in part or in full, the 
relevant foreign exchange rate difference in 
equity is recognised in the income statement.

(c)	Financial	instruments
derivative financial instruments
The group holds derivative financial instru-
ments to hedge its foreign currency and in-
terest rate risk exposure. embedded deriva-
tives are separated from the host contract 
and accounted for separately if the economic 
characteristics and risks of the host contract 
and the embedded derivative are not closely 
related, a separate instrument with the same 
terms as the embedded derivative would 
meet the definition of a derivative, and the 
combined instrument is not measured at fair 
value through profit or loss.

derivative financial instruments are recog-
nised initially at cost. subsequent to initial 
recognition, derivative financial instruments 
are measured at fair value, and changes 

therein are accounted for as described 
below. The group does not have derivative 
financial instruments that meet the criterias 
for hedge accounting. however, the group 
has derivative financial instruments that 
economically hedge assets, liabilities and 
cash flows in foreign currency. The gain or 
loss on remeasurement to fair value is rec-
ognised immediately in profit or loss as part 
of foreign exchange gain (loss).

investments in shares
investments in shares intended for long-
term ownership are recorded in the balance 
sheet under long-term financial fixed assets. 
These are valued at acquisition cost, unless 
circumstances, which cannot be regarded as 
of a temporary nature, exist which necessi-
tate a lower valuation.

share capital
Costs directly attributable to the issuance of 
ordinary shares and share options are recog-
nised as a reduction of equity.

(d)	Property,	plant	and	equipment
Recognition and measurement
Property, plant and equipment are entered 
in the accounts at cost, with deductions for 
accumulated depreciation and impairment 
losses. Cost includes costs directly attrib-
utable to the purchase of the asset. if the 
recoverable amount of property, plant and 
equipment is lower than book value, and the 
decline in value is not temporary, the asset 
is written down to fair value. based on the 
acquisition cost, straight-line depreciation 
is applied over the economic life of the non-
current assets. when relevant, the acquisi-
tion cost includes future dismantling costs.

where components of an item of property, 
plant and equipment have different useful 
lives, they are depreciated and accounted for 
separately.

subsequent costs
The carrying amount of property, plant and 
equipment includes the cost of replacing part 
of such an item when that cost is incurred 
if it is probable that the future economic 
benefits embodied with the item will flow to 
simtronics and the cost of the item can be 
measured reliably. All other costs are recog-
nised in the income statement as an expense 
as incurred.

depreciation
depreciation is charged to the income state-
ment based on a straight-line basis over the 
estimated useful lives of items of property, 
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plant and equipment. see note 10 of the 
financial statements for estimated useful 
lives for the different types of property, plant 
and equipment.

(e)	Intangible	assets
goodwill
All business combinations are accounted 
for using the purchase method. goodwill 
represents amounts arising on acquisition 
of subsidiaries, and consists of the differ-
ence between the cost of the acquisition and 
the fair value of the net identifiable assets 
acquired.

goodwill is stated at cost less any accu-
mulated impairment losses. goodwill is 
allocated to cash-generating units and is no 
longer amortised but is tested annually for 
impairment.

Research and development
expenditures on research activities, under-
taken with the prospect of gaining new scien-
tific or technical knowledge and understand-
ing, are recognised in the income statement 
as an expense as incurred.

expenditures on development activities, 
where research findings are applied to a 
plan or design for the production of new or 
substantially improved products and proc-
esses, are capitalised if the product or proc-
ess is technically and commercially feasible 
and the group has sufficient resources to 
complete development. The capitalised cost 
includes the cost of materials, direct labour 
and a proportional share of overhead costs. 
other development expenditures are recog-
nised in the income statement as an expense 
as incurred. Capitalised development expen-
ditures are stated at cost less accumulated 
depreciation and impairment losses.

other intangible assets
other intangible assets that are acquired are 
stated at cost less accumulated depreciation 
and impairment losses.

expenditures on internally generated good-
will and brands are recognised in the income 
statement as an expense as incurred.

subsequent expenditure
subsequent expenditure on capitalised 
intangible assets is capitalised only when 
it increases the future economic benefits 
embodied in the specific asset to which it 
relates. All other expenditures are recog-
nised in the income statement as an expense 
as incurred.

depreciation
depreciation is charged to the income 
statement on a straight-line basis over the 
estimated useful lives of intangible as-
sets. goodwill and intangible assets with an 
indefinite useful life are tested for impair-
ment at 31 december. other intangible 
assets are amortised from the date they are 
available for use. see note 9 of the financial 
statements for estimated useful lives for the 
different classes of intangible assets.

(f)	Leased	assets
leases in terms of which the group assumes 
substantially all the risks and rewards of 
ownership are classified as finance leases. 
upon initial recognition the leased asset is 
measured at an amount equal to the lower 
of its fair value and the present value of 
future lease payments. subsequent to initial 
recognition, the asset is accounted for in ac-
cordance with the accounting policy that the 
group uses for such assets.

other leases are operating leases.

(g)	Inventory
inventories of raw materials are valued at 
the lower of the cost of acquisition and the 
net realisable value. work in progress and 
finished products are valued at the lower 
of the cost to manufacture or net realisable 
value. net realisable value is the estimated 
selling price in the ordinary course of busi-
ness, less the estimated costs of completion 
and selling expenses. spare parts and parts 
held by service agents are valued at cost. A 
deduction is made for obsolescence when 
necessary.

The cost of inventories is based on the 
weighted average cost principle and includes 
expenditure incurred in acquiring the inven-
tories and bringing them to their existing lo-
cation and condition. in the case of manufac-
tured inventories and work in progress, cost 
includes an appropriate share of overheads 
based on normal operating capacity.

(h)	Construction	work	in	progress
Construction work in progress represents 
unbilled revenue expected to be received 
from customers for work completed up to 
the reporting date. measurement is at cost 
plus profit recognised to reporting date less 
progress billings, with a reduction for fore-
seeable losses. Cost includes all direct and 
indirectly related contract expenditure.
long-term contracts are presented as part of 
short-term receivables in the balance sheet. 
if the group receives advance payments 

which exceed the recognised income, the 
difference is presented as deferred income in 
the balance sheet.

(i)	Impairment
impairment test
The carrying amounts of the group’s as-
sets, other than inventory and deferred tax 
assets (see separate accounting policies), 
are reviewed at each reporting date to 
determine whether there is any indication 
of impairment. if any such indication exists, 
the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated. 
For goodwill and intangible assets that have 
indefinite lives or that are not yet available 
for use, the recoverable amount is estimated 
at each reporting date.

An impairment loss is recognised if the 
carrying amount of an asset or its cash-gen-
erating unit exceeds its recoverable amount. 
impairment losses are recognised in the 
income statement. A cash-generating unit is 
the smallest identifiable group of assets that 
generates cash flows, and that largely are 
independent from cash inflows from other 
assets or groups of assets.

impairment losses recognised in respect of 
cash-generating units are allocated such 
that the carrying amount of any goodwill in 
the cash-generating unit is reduced first. 
subsequently, impairment losses are allocat-
ed to the carrying amount of other assets in 
the unit (group of units) on a pro rata basis.

Calculation of recoverable amount
The recoverable amount for goodwill, assets 
with an indefinite useful life, and intangible 
assets not yet available for use, is calculated 
annually at the reporting date.

The recoverable amount of assets is the 
greater of their net selling price and value in 
use. in calculating value in use, the esti-
mated future cash flows are discounted to 
their present value using a pre-tax discount 
rate that reflects current market assess-
ments of the time value of money and the 
risks specific to the asset. For an asset that 
does not generate independent cash inflows, 
the recoverable amount is determined for 
the cash-generating unit to which the asset 
belongs.

Reversals of impairment
An impairment loss in respect of goodwill is 
not reversed. in respect of other assets, an 
impairment loss is reversed if there has been 
a change in the estimates used to determine 
the recoverable amount. An impairment loss 
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is reversed only to the extent that the asset’s 
carrying amount does not exceed the car-
rying amount that would have been deter-
mined, net of depreciation or amortisation, if 
no impairment loss had been recognised.

(j)	Cash	and	cash	equivalents
The balance sheet item cash and cash 
equivalents also comprises money market 
funds and other short term investments 
with an original duration of three months or 
less. bank overdrafts are included as part 
of cash flow from financing activities in the 
statement of cash flows. The group has a 
cash pool arrangement and in the parent 
company’s financial statements the parent 
company presents the total bank deposits/
net use of the group overdraft facility.

(k)	Employee	benefits
defined benefit plans
Pension obligations related to defined 
benefit plans are calculated separately for 
each benefit plan by making an estimate 
of the amount of benefit that employees 
have earned in return for their service in 
the current and prior periods. These future 
benefits are discounted in order to determine 
the present value, and the fair value of plan 
assets is deducted in order to determine 
pension obligations. see note 19 for further 
information regarding the assumptions made 
in estimating the value of pension obligations 
and assets. The calculations are prepared by 
an actuary, and are based on a linear model.

Actuarial gains and losses that arise on 
the calculation of the group’s liabilities for 
pension plans are recognised in the income 
statement over the estimated remaining 
service period to the extent that the accumu-
lated actuarial gains and losses exceed 10% 
of the greater of net present value of pension 
liabilities and the fair value of pension as-
sets. otherwise no actuarial gains and losses 
are recognised.

when the pension calculations result in a net 
asset for the group, the recognition of the 
asset is limited to the net total of any unrec-
ognised past service costs and the present 
value of any future refunds from the plan or 
reductions in future contributions to the plan.

share-based payment transactions
The group has share-option plans which give 
certain employees and board members the 
possibility to buy shares in the company. The 
fair value of granted options is recognised 
as a payroll expense, with a corresponding 
increase in equity. Fair value is measured at 

grant date and is allocated over the period 
until the option holder is unconditionally 
entitled to exercise the options. The fair value 
of options granted are measured based on 
the black & scholes model. The recognised 
expense is adjusted to reflect the actual 
number of share options that vest, except 
from those instances where the options 
lapse as a result of the development in the 
share price. A provision for social security 
tax is recognised if the share-options are «in 
the money».

short-term benefit obligations 
short-term employee benefit obligations are 
measured on an undiscounted basis and are 
expensed as the related service is provided. 
A provision is recognised for the amount 
expected to be paid under short-term cash 
bonus or profit-sharing plans if the group 
has a present legal or constructive obligation 
to pay this amount and the obligation can be 
estimated reliably.

(l)	Interest-bearing	borrowings
interest-bearing borrowings are recog-
nised initially at fair value less attributable 
transaction costs. subsequent to initial 
recognition, interest-bearing borrowings are 
stated at amortised cost with any difference 
between cost and redemption value being 
recognised in the income statement over 
the period of the borrowings on an effective 
interest basis.

Financial instruments, such as convertible 
loans, are initially classified as a financial li-
ability and/or equity component based on the 
substance of the contractual arrangement. 
The liability and the equity component is ini-
tially recorded at fair value calculated on the 
basis of the effective interest in the loan. For 
the convertible loan an assumed alterantive 
interest rate (exclusive the conversion right) 
has been applied to calculate the fair value.

(m)	Trade	and	other	short	term	payables
Trade and other payables are stated cost.

(n)	Provisions
in general
A provision is recognised in the balance 
sheet when the group has a present legal or 
constructive obligation as a result of a past 
event, and it is probable that an outflow of 
economic benefits will be required to set-
tle the obligation. if the effect is material, 
provisions are determined by discounting the 
expected future cash flows at a pre-tax rate 
that reflects current market assessments of 
the time value of money and, where appro-

priate, the risks specific to the liability.

warranty allocations
A provision for future warranty costs is 
recognised in the balance sheet when the 
related products or services are sold. The 
provision is based on historical information 
on warranty costs and by a weighting of all 
possible outcomes with their associated 
probabilities.

Restructuring
A provision for restructuring is recognised 
when the group has approved a detailed and 
formal restructuring plan, and the restruc-
turing either has commenced or has been 
announced publicly. Future operating costs 
are not provided for.

onerous contracts
A provision for onerous contracts is rec-
ognised when the expected benefits to be 
derived by the group from a contract are 
lower than the unavoidable cost of meet-
ing its obligations under the contract. The 
provision is estimated based on the lower of 
the net present value of the costs of exiting 
from the contract and the net present value 
of the costs of fulfilling the contract. before 
a separate provision for an onerous contract 
is established, an entity recognises any 
impairment loss that has occurred on assets 
dedicated to that contract. 

(o)	Revenue	recognition
goods sold and services rendered
Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised 
in the income statement when the significant 
risks and rewards of ownership have been 
transferred to the buyer. normally this will 
be at the date of delivery. Revenue from serv-
ices rendered is recognised in the income 
statement in proportion to the stage of com-
pletion of the transaction at the reporting 
date. The stage of completion is assessed by 
reference to work performed. 

no revenue is recognised if there are signifi-
cant uncertainties regarding recovery of the 
consideration due, if is probable that goods 
will be returned or in such cases where the 
group retains right of use over the delivered 
goods.

long-term contracts
if the outcome of a construction contract can 
be estimated reliably, contract revenue and 
expenses are recognised in the income state-
ment in proportion to the stage of completion 
of the contact. The stage of completion is as-
sessed by reference to the relation between 
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contract costs incurred and expected total 
contract costs. This calculation is assessed 
together with other relevant information 
and figures that indicate the progress in the 
construction work.

if a loss on a contract is expected, a provision 
is made for the expected loss, irrespective 
of the stage of completion of the contract 
activity.

Commissions
when the group acts in the capacity of an 
agent rather than as the principal in a trans-
action, the revenue recognised is the net 
amount of commission made by the group.

government grants
A government grant is recognised in the bal-
ance sheet as deferred income provided that 
there is reasonable assurance that it will be 
received and that the group will comply with 
the conditions attaching to it. grants that 
compensate the group for expenses incurred 
are recognised as revenue in the income 
statement on a systematic basis in the same 
period in which the expenses are incurred. 
investment grants are recognised in the 
balance sheet on a systematic basis over the 
useful life of the asset. investment grants are 
recognised either as deferred income, or rec-
ognised through deduction from the asset’s 
carrying value.

(p)	Lease	payments
lease payments under operational lease 
Payments made under operating leases are 
recognised in the income statement on a 
straight line basis over the term of the lease.

lease payments under financial lease
minimum lease payments made under 
finance leases are allocated between the 
finance expense and the reduction of the 
outstanding liability. The finance expense 
is allocated to each period during the lease 
term so as to produce a constant periodic 
rate of interest on the remaining balance of 
the liability. 

(q)	Financial	income	and	financial	expense
net financing costs comprise interest paya-
ble on borrowings calculated using the effec-
tive interest rate method, foreign exchange 
gains and losses, dividends received, and 
gains and losses on financial instruments 
that are recognised in the income statement.

interest income is recognised in the income 
statement as it accrues, using the effective 
interest method. 

(r)	Taxes
The tax expense in the income statement in-
cludes both taxes payable for the period and 
the change in deferred taxes. The change in 
deferred taxes reflects future taxes payable 
resulting from the year’s activities. The tax 
effect on items that are recognised directly in 
equity, is recognised directly in equity.

deferred taxes are taxes determined on 
the basis of the accumulated result, and 
which fall due for payment in future periods. 
deferred taxes are calculated on net positive 
temporary differences between accounting 
and tax balance sheet values, after losses 
carried forward under the liability method. 
see note 20 and 21. The amount of deferred 
tax provided is based on the expected man-
ner of realisation or settlement of the carry-
ing amount of assets and liabilities, using tax 
rates enacted at the reporting date.

A deferred tax asset is recognised only to the 
extent that it is probable that future taxable 
profits will be available against which the 
asset can be utilised. deferred tax assets 
are reduced to the extent that it is no longer 
probable that the related tax benefit will be 
realised.

(s)	Discontinued	operations
A discontinued operation is a component 
of the group’s business that represents a 
separate major line of business or geograph-
ical area of operations, or is a subsidiary 
acquired exclusively with a view to resale.

Classification as a discontinued operation 
occurs upon disposal or when the operation 
meets the criteria to be classified as held for 
sale, if earlier. A disposal group that is to be 
abandoned may also meet these criteria. 

when an operation is classified as a discon-
tinued operation, the comparative income 
statement is restated as if the operation 
had been discontinued from the start of the 
comparative period.

(t)	Earnings	per	share
The group presents basic and diluted earn-
ings per share data for its ordinary shares. 
basic earnings per share is calculated by 
dividing the profit or loss attributable to 
ordinary shares, by the weighted average 
number of ordinary shares outstanding dur-
ing the period. diluted earnings per share 
is determined by adjusting the profit or loss 
attributable to ordinary shares, and the 
weighted average number of ordinary shares 
outstanding during the period, for the effects 

of all dilutive potential ordinary shares (for 
example outstanding share-options/rights).

(u)	Segment	reporting
An operating segment is a component of the 
group that engages in business activities 
from which it may earn revenues and incur 
expenses, including revenue and expenses 
that relate to transactions with any of the 
group’s other components. All operating 
segments operating results are reviewed 
regularly by the group’s Ceo to make desci-
sions about resources to be allocated to the 
segment and assess its performance, and 
for which descrete fininacial information is 
availiable (see note 2). 

(v)	Cash	flow	statement
The cash flow statement is compiled using 
the indirect method. Cash and cash equiva-
lents include cash, bank deposits, and other 
short-term and liquid positions which may be 
readily convertible with an insignificant risk 
of exchange rate change to a known amount 
of cash, and which have an original maturity 
of three months or less from the date of 
acquisition.

(w)	New	standards	and	interpretations	not	
yet	adopted
A number of new standards, amendments to 
standards and interpretations are not yet ef-
fective for the year ended 31 december 2009, 
and have not been applied in preparing these 
consolidated financial statements:

 · iAs 32 (R2009) Classification of Rights 
issues

 · iAs 39 (Amended 2009) eligible hedged 
items

 · iFRs 1 (R2008) First-time adoption of 
international Financial standards

 · iFRs 1 (R2009) Additional exemptions for 
First-time Adopters

 · iFRs 2 (R2009) group Cash-settled share-
based Payment Transactions

 · iFRs 3 (R2008) business combinations
 · iAs 27 (amended 2008) Consolidated and 

separate Financial statements
 · iFRiC 15 Agreements for the construction 

of Real estate
 · iFRiC 17 distribution of non-Cash Assets 

to owners
 · iFRs 9 Financial instruments
 · iFRiC 14 (amended 2009) Prepayments of 

a minimum Funding Requirement
 · iFRiC 19 extinguishing Financial liabilities 

with equity instruments
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 · iAs 24 (R2009) Related Party disclosure
 · iFRs 1 (R2010) limited exemption from 

Comparative iFRs 7 disclosures for First-
time Adopters

 · improvements of iFRss 2008 - iFRs 5: 
Plan to sell the controlling interest in a 
subsidiary

 · improvements of iFRss 2009

Measurement	of	fair	values
A number of the group’s accounting policies 
and disclosures require the determination 
of fair value, for both financial and non-
financial assets and liabilities. Fair values 
have been determined for measurement 
and/or disclosure purposes based on the 
following methods. where applicable, further 
information about the assumptions made in 
determining fair values is disclosed in the 
notes.

(i)	Property,	plant	and	equipment
The fair value of plant and equipment is 
based on observable market prices, or fair 
value assessment based on the present 
value of expected future cash flows. see note 
26 regarding acquisitions.

(ii)	Intangible	assets
The fair value of intangible assets is based 
on the present value of expected future cash 
flows. see note 26 regarding acquisitions.

(iii)	Trade	and	other	receivables
The fair value of trade and other receivables, 
other than accrued income from construction 
contracts, is assessed based on the present 
value of expected future cash flows.

(iv)	Derivatives
The fair value of forward exchange contracts 
is based on their listed market price, if avail-

able. if a listed market price is not available, 
then fair value is estimated by discounting 
the difference between the contractual for-
ward price and the current forward price for 
the residual maturity of the contract.

(v)	Share	based	payments
The fair value of employee share-options is 
measured using a binominal model - black 
& scholes. measurement inputs in the model 
include share price on measurement date, 
exercise price of the instrument, expected 
volatility, expected life of the instruments, 
expected dividends, and the risk free interest 
rate.

Note 2 segmeNt reportiNg

Operating	segments
The group has two reportable segments, as 
described below, which are the group’s stra-
tegic business units. The strategic business 
units offer different products and services, 
and are managed separately because they 
require different technology and marketing 
strategies. For each of the strategic busi-
ness units, the group’s Ceo reviews internal 
management reports on at least a quarterly 
basis. The following summary describes the 
operations in each of the group’s reportable 
segments:

segment results, assets and liabilities 
include items directly attributable to a seg-
ment as well as those that can be allocated 
on the basis of a reasonable distribution 
formula. segment capital expenditures are 
the total costs incurred during the period to 
acquire segment assets that are expected to 
be used for more than one period.

Detection	Systems
The business segment «detection systems» 
covers the company’s activity in the area 
of development and production of gas and 
flame detectors for use in the shipping, oil 
and mining and other industries.

Extuinguishing	Solutions	
The business segment «extinguishing solu-
tions» consists of water mist engineering As 
(wme), Fire eater A/s and simtronics Fire & 
gas Pte. ltd. wme produces fire-extinguish-
ing systems which use among other water 
mist technology. The oil and offshore indus-
tries are also the most important markets for 
this business segment. wme also provides 
nitrogen generators for installation on tank-
ers and offshore installations, and for use 
in land-based petrochemical industry. The 
nitrogen generators contribute to the stabi-
lization of flammable and explosive cargo, 
and the membrane technology that is used is 
self-developed. Fire eater A/s is a company 
that delivers gas based fire extinguishing 
system primary based on the extinguish gas 
ineRgen, while simtronics Fire & gas Pte. 
ltd. is a sales and production company for 
wme systems.

during 2009, the group management decided 
to co-locate and merge the two subsidiar-
ies water mist engineering As and eTech 
Process As. during this process it was also 
decided that the business segments «Fire 
Prevention systems» should be a part of the 
business segment «extuingishing solutions».

Corporate	
The group management decided in 2009 to 

present the business segments «detection 
systems», «extinguishing systems» and 
«Corporate». The increased corporate cost 
from 2008 to 2009, entranced nok 7 200 to 
the Technor transaction, 1 000 in increased 
share-based payment expense and onetime 
cost for the shutdown of the korea branch. 
Corporate assets shows restricted cash 
according to the loan agreement with dnb 
noR, see note 16. in liabilities the loans to 
finance the group is shown.

Geographical	segments	
simtronics products are exported to ap-
proximately 25 countries world wide through 
a global network of agents and distributors. 
The segments are managed from norway, 
but have activities hungary, Poland, Russia, 
uAe, and singapore. and markets worldwide. 
manufacturing facilities are operated in nor-
way, France and denmark, with sales offices 
in norway, France, denmark, korea, Czech 
Republic, hungary, Poland, Russia, uAe, and 
singapore.

 in presenting information on the basis of 
geographical segments, segment revenue 
is based on the geographical location 
geographical location of the assets. The 
company has not identified any impairment 
losses. 
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detection systems  extinguishing solutions  Corporate  Total 

2009 2008 2009 2008 2009 2008 2009 2008

Figures in nok 1000 

Revenue	from	external	customers	

norway  18 665  16 671  75 941  109 480  -  -  94 605  126 151 

France  28 210  24 200  8 220  3 200  -  -  36 430  27 400 

denmark  680  1 680  21 868  32 600  -  -  22 548  34 280 

The netherlands  7 290  9 039  2 119  -  -  -  9 409  9 039 

italy  1 257  -  7 247  - - -  8 504 

Rest of europe  25 544  12 492  24 558  53 726  -  -  50 103  66 218 

korea  -  -  9 306  36 100  -  -  9 306  36 100 

Asia/Pacific  17 229  16 037  13 892  37 503  -  -  31 121  53 540 

singapore  877  -  13 793  -  -  -  14 670  - 

other (rest/unallocated)  4 189  5 142  7 590  1 842  -  -  11 778  6 984 

Total	revenue	from	
external	customers	 	103	940	 	85	261	 	184	535	 	274	451	 	-	 	-	 	288	475	 	359	712	

 

Cost of materials  46 727  36 915  96 628  160 517  -  -  143 355  197 432 

depreciation  4 287  2 405  9 379  6 670  -  -  13 666  9 075 

other operating expenses  42 707  37 978  96 451  77 387  22 145  12 326  161 302  127 691 

Operating	profit	(loss)	 	10	219	 	7	963	 	(17	923) 	29	877	 	(22	145) 	(12	326) 	(29	849) 	25	514	

net financing costs  12 991  8 829 

income tax expense  (2 548)  4 508 

Profit	(loss)	 	(40	291) 	12	177	
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 detection systems  extinguishing solutions  Corporate 

2009 2008 2009 2008 2009 2008 2009 2008

Figures in nok 1000 

Segment	assets	

norway  57 868  76 738  165 482  170 787  30 000  30 000  253 349  277 525 

denmark  -  -  73 503  134 726  -  -  73 503  134 726 

France  30 005  8 167  -  -  -  -  30 005  8 167 

Russia  -  -  2 668  4 278  -  -  2 668  4 278 

singapore  -  -  9 104  -  -  -  9 104  - 

others  -  -  2 002  5 606  -  -  2 002  5 606 

Consolidated	total	assets	 	87	872	 	84	905	 	252	758	 	315	397	 	30	000	 	30	000	 	370	630	 	430	302	

Segment	liabilities	

norway  33 789  32 728  49 741  79 381  147 335  139 300  230 865  251 409 

denmark  -  -  9 429  17 474  -  -  9 429  17 474 

France  8 844  -  -  -  -  -  8 844  - 

Russia  -  -  937  612  -  -  937  612 

singapore  -  -  6 009  -  -  -  6 009  - 

others  -  -  2 335  408  -  -  2 335  408 

Consolidated	total	liabilities	 	42	633	 	32	728	 	68	452	 	97	875	 	147	335	 	139	300	 	258	420	 	269	902	

Capital	expenditures	

norway  7 688  9 750  315  61 700  -  -  8 003  71 450 

denmark  -  -  1 577  1 133  -  -  1 577  1 133 

France  1 134  850  -  79 100  -  -  1 134  79 950 

Russia  -  -  13  192  -  -  13  192 

others  -  -  2  48  -  -  2  48 

Consolidated	capital	expenditures	 	8	822	 	10	600	 	1	907	 	142	173	 	-	 	-	 	10	729	 	152	773	
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Note 3 short-term reCeivables 

Short	term	receivables

 simtronics AsA  simtronics group 

2009 2008 2009 2008
  Figures in nok 1000

 13 334  17 195 Accounts receivables, external, gross  62 443  85 069 

 7 372  14 351 Accounts receivables, intra group  -  - 

 (1 785)  (480) (Provision for bad debt)  (2 494)  (906)

 -  - unbilled revenue from long-term contracts  17 175  34 334 

 1 619  1 419 other external short term receivables  10 340  5 298 

	20	540	 	32	485	 Sum	kortsiktige	fordringer 	87	463	 	123	796	

Ageing	of	account	receivables

 simtronics AsA  simtronics group 

2009 2008 2009 2008

 not overdue  8 335  23 491  37 260  69 391 

 overdue by 0 - 30 days  4 637  2 430  13 446  11 043 

 overdue by 31 - 90 days  4 688  1 144  4 981  1 359 

 overdue by 90 - 120 days  1 400  311  1 233  168 

 more than 120 days  1 647  4 170  5 523  3 108 

	Total	 	20	706	 	31	546	 	62	443	 	85	069	

 Provision for bad debt  (1 785)  (480)  (2 494)  (906)

	Accounts	receivables,	book	value	 	18	921	 	31	066	 	59	949	 	84	163	

The	change	in	bad	debt	provision	in	the	accounting	year	was	as	follows:	

 simtronics AsA  simtronics group 

2009 2008 2009 2008

 balance as per 1 january  480  76  951  411 

 Provision made  1 306  404  1 844  495 

 Provision used  -  -  (4)  - 

 Provision reversed  -  -  (296)  - 

	Balance	as	per	31	Dec	 	1	785	 	480	 	2	494	 	906	

	Short	term	receivables	in	currency	of	origin:	

2009

 simtronics AsA  nok  usd  euR  Total 

Accounts receivables, external, gross  7 472  122  5 739  13 333 

Accounts receivables, intra group  7 372  -  -  7 372 

Provision for bad debt  (1 785)  -  -  (1 785)

other external short term receivables  1 451  168  -  1 619 

Total	short-term	receivables 	14	511	 	290	 	5	739	 	-	 	-	 	-	 	20	540	

2009

 simtronics group  nok  usd  euR  dkk  sgd  other  Total 

Accounts receivables, external, gross  21 944  3 460  28 794  4 729  1 960  1 557  62 443 

Provision for bad debt  (2 148)  -  (54)  (292)  -  -  (2 494)

unbilled revenue from long-term contracts  3 040  169  13 965  -  -  -  17 175 

other external short term receivables  4 169  167  2 789  1 134  2 006  74  10 340 

Total	short-term	receivables 	27	005	 	3	797	 	45	493	 	5	572	 	3	967	 	1	630	 	87	463	
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Note 4 short-term liabilities

Short-term	liabilities

 simtronics AsA  simtronics group 

2009 2008 2009 2008
  Figures in nok 1000

 83 100  45 005  liabilities to financial institutions  89 150  63 234 

 11 908  11 670  Accounts payable, external  41 672  45 040 

 3 511  2 574 Accounts payable, intra group  -  - 

 3 600  1 690  Public duties payable  17 193  13 033 

 -  -  Taxes payable  2 066  (787)

 100  - Provisions  1 172  964 

 4 838  9 807 Advance payment from dnb noR Factoring  4 838  9 807 

 5 518  5 555 other short-term liabilities  18 608  17 167 

 -  - Advance payments from customers  2 114  4 286 

	112	576	 	76	300	 Total	short-term	liabilities 	176	813	 	152	744	

	Ageing	of	accounts	payables

 simtronics AsA  simtronics group 

2009 2008 2009 2008

 not overdue  5 384  3 951  15 771  21 322 

 overdue by 0 - 30 days  6 865  8 388  11 555  15 289 

 overdue by 31 - 90 days  1 931  1 758  7 101  5 085 

 overdue by 90 - 120 days  189  -  6 156  1 024 

 more than 120 days  1 049  147  1 089  2 320 

	Total	 	15	419	 	14	244	 	41	672	 	45	040	

	Short	term	payables	in	currency	of	origin:	

2009

simtronics AsA  nok  usd  euR  gbP  sgd  Andre  sum 

 liabilities to financial institutions  83 100  -  -  -  -  -  83 100 

 Accounts payable, external  8 497  309  900  1 866  187  150  11 908 

Accounts payable, intra group  3 193  -  134  -  61  123  3 511 

 Public duties payable  3 600  -  -  -  -  -  3 600 

Provisions  100  -  -  -  -  -  100 

other short-term liabilities  10 356  -  -  -  -  -  10 356 

Total 	108	847	 	309	 	1	034	 	1	866	 	248	 	273	 	112	576	
         

2009

 simtronics group  nok  usd  euR  gbP  sgd  dkk  Andre  sum 

 liabilities to financial institutions  83 673  -  -  -  -  5 467  10  89 150 

 Accounts payable, external  15 296  691  18 573  2 593  2 439  1 777  304  41 672 

 Public duties payable  9 547  -  1 891  -  -  5 755  -  17 193 

 Taxes payable  756  -  -  -  861  323  126  2 066 

Provisions  525  -  498  -  -  149  -  1 172 

other short-term liabilities  21 229  -  -  -  1 800  156  263  23 447 

Advance payments from customers  2 114  -  -  -  -  -  -  2 114 

Total 	133	140	 	691	 	20	963	 	2	593	 	5	100	 	13	626	 	703	 	176	813
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Note 5 FiNaNCial NoN-CurreNt assets 

simtronics AsA  simtronics group 

2009 2008 2009 2008

 Figures in nok 1000

 3 088  404 loan to simtronics sAs  -  - 

 19 324  - loan to water mist engineering As  -  - 

 -  20 324 loan to eTech Process As  -  - 

 3 936  1 932 other long-term receivables, intra group  -  - 

 125  828 other long-term receivables, external  869  1 406 

 -  - investment grant office-rent  2 960 

 63 813  57 113 investment in water mist engineering As  -  - 

 11 100  11 100 investment in simtronics sAs  -  - 

 62 038  62 038 investment in Fire eater As  -  - 

 410  - investment in simtronics Fire & gas Pte ltd  -  - 

 -  -  other investments  -  1 150 

 30 000  30 000 Restricted cash reserves  30 000  30 000 

	193	834	 	183	739	 Sum	finansielle	anleggsmidler 	33	829	 	32	556	

Simtronics	ASA
simtronics AsA has given simtronics sAs a long-term interest-bearing loan, by converting nok 3 088 in Account receivables during 2009.

The loan from simtronics AsA to eTech Process As given in 2008, is taken over by water mist engineering As in connection with the merger of 
these companies during 2009.

in conjunction with the company’s loan agreement, the company has committed itself to establishing a cash deposit of nok 30 000. see note 15 
for further information.

Simtronics	group
The simtronics group has prepaid mnok 3,0 millioner as a grant office-rent for a building in kristiansand. 

Note 6 iNveNtories aNd Cost oF materials

 simtronics AsA  simtronics group 

2009 2008 2009 2008

 Figures in nok 1000

Cost of goods sold 

 45 441  49 216 Cost of goods sold, gross  146 210  241 950 

 (1 364)  (9 919) Change in inventory  (2 855)  (44 518)

	44	077	 	39	297	 Cost	of	goods	sold,	net	 	143	355	 	197	432	

Inventories 

 1 324  4 585 Raw materials  34 412  39 366 

 6 727  921 work in progress  8 042  5 071 

 12 524  13 705 Finished goods  18 775  18 149 

	20	575	 	19	211	 Total	inventories	 	61	229	 	62	587	

 20 575  19 181 of which valued at initial cost  61 125  62 438 

 -  30 of which valued at net realisable value  105  548 

simtronics AsA has put up security in the form of inventories for the use of overdraft facilities. see notes 15 and 16 for further information. 
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Note 7 FiNaNCial items

 simtronics AsA  simtronics group 

2009 2008 2009 2008

 Figures in nok 1000

 4 938  - dividend from subsidiaries  -  - 

 -  805 group contributions from subsidiaries  -  - 

 3 108  2 713 interest income  3 314  4 220 

 4 641  8 214 Foreign exchange gain  8 877  11 580 

	12	688	 	11	732	 Total	financial	income 	12	190	 	15	800	

 11 046  8 811 interest expenses, bank loan and overdraft facilities  12 729  10 606 

 969  1 194 other interest expenses and guarantee commissions  1 185  1 261 

 9 450  2 361 Foreign exchange loss  11 267  12 762 

	21	465	 	12	366	 Total	financial	expenses 	25	181	 	24	629	

	(8	777) 	(634) Net	financial	income	and	expenses 	(12	991) 	(8	829)

simtronics AsA received in 2009 nok 4 938 in dividend for the share of 51% in Fire eater A/s.

borrowing costs are recognised as an expense in the period in which they are incurred.

Note 8 loNg-term CoNtraCts 

 simtronics AsA  simtronics group 

2009 2008 2009 2008

 Figures in nok 1000

long-term contracts in progress per 31 december 

This	period	

- - Total amount of revenue recognised in the period  35 918  105 789 

- - unbilled revenue  17 595  34 333 

- - Advance payments netted against unbilled revenue  -  - 

	-	 	-	 Net	unbilled	revenue	 	17	595	 	34	333	

- - Advance payment from contracts in progress  1 230  - 

- - Advance payments netted against unbilled revenue  -  - 

- - Cash	collected	in	excess	of	revenues	recognised	from	customers 	1	230	 	-	

Accumulated	

- - Total revenue recognised from long-term contracts per 31 dec.  61 989  105 789 

- - Total costs recognised from long-term contracts per 31 dec.  (43 408)  (73 297)

	-	 	-	 Total	net	recognized	profit	from	contr.	in	progress	 	18	581	 	32	492	

Recognition	of	contract	revenue	
income from construction contracts is recognised based on the stage of completion. The stage of completion is calculated based on incurred 
costs as a proportion of total estimated costs. The calculation is assessed with consideration to other available information and targets provid-
ing indications on the progress of the projects. if circumstances require, potential losses and liabilities arising from delays or other factors are 
recognised in the income statement based on best estimates. see note 1 on accounting principles for further information.
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Note 9 iNtaNgible assets

 simtronics AsA  simtronics group 

 Cost 
development costs 

and patents
backlog of 

orders other Total goodwill order backlog
development costs 

and patents
Customer 

Relationships Right to use softwares other Total

 Figures in nok 1000 

 balance at 1 january 2008  8 058  -  1 426  9 484  22 691  1 695  20 502  -  -  -  1 583  46 471 

 Acquisitions through business combinations 4  -  1 300  -  1 300  75 298  2 427  25 936  9 278  9 872  5 483  -  128 293 

 other acquisitions - internally developed  5 243  -  51  5 294  -  -  7 605  -  -  -  51  7 656 

 effect of movements in exchange rates  -  -  -  -  8 991  65  5 214  2 147  2 404  1 335  240  20 396 

	Balance	at	31	December	2008	1 	13	301	 	1	300	 	1	477	 	16	078	 	106	980	 	4	187	 	59	257	 	11	425	 	12	276	 	6	818	 	1	874	 	202	816	

 - 

 balance at 1 january 2009  13 301  1 300  1 477  16 078  106 980  4 187  59 257  11 425  12 276  6 818  1 874  202 816 

 Acquisitions through business combinations  -  -  -  -  (12 240)  -  -  -  -  57  -  (12 183)

 other acquisitions - internally developed  5 415  -  -  5 415  -  -  7 686  -  -  -  -  7 686 

 effect of movements in exchange rates  -  -  -  -  (7 117)  (55)  (5 402)  (1 490)  (2 038)  (1 191)  (217)  (17 509)

	Balance	at	31	December	2009	2 	18	716	 	1	300	 	1	477	 	21	493	 	87	623	 	4	132	 	61	541	 	9	935	 	10	238	 	5	684	 	1	657	 	180	809	

 - 

 depreciation and impairment losses  - 

 balance at 1 january 2008  470  -  225  695  -  983  3 672  -  -  -  225  4 881 

 depreciation charge for the year  154  799  484  1 437  -  1 165  3 660  955  -  522  593  6 896 

 other changes  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  - 

 effect of movements in exchange rates  -  -  -  -  -  25  1 011  162  -  103  85  1 386 

	Balance	at	31	December	2008	1 	624	 	799	 	709	 	2	132	 	-	 	2	174	 	8	343	 	1	117	 	-	 	625	 	903	 	13	162	

 - 

 balance at 1 january 2009  624  799  709  2 132  -  2 174  8 343  1 117  -  625  903  13 162 

 depreciation charge for the year  542  501  493  1 536  -  936  5 954  1 114  -  668  609  9 279 

 other changes  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  - 

 effect of movements in exchange rates  -  -  -  -  -  (29)  (1 040)  (202)  -  (160)  (29)  (1 460)

	Balance	at	31	December	2009	2 	1	166	 	1	300	 	1	202	 	3	668	 	-	 	3	080	 	13	257	 	2	029	 	-	 	1	133	 	1	483	 	20	982	

 - 

 depreciation rate 3 10% - 20%  - - - 10% - 10% 20% 20% -

 useful lives 10 years -  5 years  - - - 10 years - 10 years 5 years  5 years -

	Net	carrying	amounts	

 At 1. januar 2008  7 588  -  1 201  8 789  22 691  712  16 830  -  -  -  1 358  41 590 

 At 1. januar 2009  12 677  501  768  13 946  106 980  2 014  50 913  10 308  12 276  6 193  971  189 654 

	At	31.	desember	2009	 	17	550	 	-	 	276	 	17	826	 	87	623	 	1	052	 	48	283	 	7	906	 	10	238	 	4	551	 	174	 	159	828	
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Note 9 iNtaNgible assets

 simtronics AsA  simtronics group 

 Cost 
development costs 

and patents
backlog of 

orders other Total goodwill order backlog
development costs 

and patents
Customer 

Relationships Right to use softwares other Total

 Figures in nok 1000 

 balance at 1 january 2008  8 058  -  1 426  9 484  22 691  1 695  20 502  -  -  -  1 583  46 471 

 Acquisitions through business combinations 4  -  1 300  -  1 300  75 298  2 427  25 936  9 278  9 872  5 483  -  128 293 

 other acquisitions - internally developed  5 243  -  51  5 294  -  -  7 605  -  -  -  51  7 656 

 effect of movements in exchange rates  -  -  -  -  8 991  65  5 214  2 147  2 404  1 335  240  20 396 

	Balance	at	31	December	2008	1 	13	301	 	1	300	 	1	477	 	16	078	 	106	980	 	4	187	 	59	257	 	11	425	 	12	276	 	6	818	 	1	874	 	202	816	

 - 

 balance at 1 january 2009  13 301  1 300  1 477  16 078  106 980  4 187  59 257  11 425  12 276  6 818  1 874  202 816 

 Acquisitions through business combinations  -  -  -  -  (12 240)  -  -  -  -  57  -  (12 183)

 other acquisitions - internally developed  5 415  -  -  5 415  -  -  7 686  -  -  -  -  7 686 

 effect of movements in exchange rates  -  -  -  -  (7 117)  (55)  (5 402)  (1 490)  (2 038)  (1 191)  (217)  (17 509)

	Balance	at	31	December	2009	2 	18	716	 	1	300	 	1	477	 	21	493	 	87	623	 	4	132	 	61	541	 	9	935	 	10	238	 	5	684	 	1	657	 	180	809	

 - 

 depreciation and impairment losses  - 

 balance at 1 january 2008  470  -  225  695  -  983  3 672  -  -  -  225  4 881 

 depreciation charge for the year  154  799  484  1 437  -  1 165  3 660  955  -  522  593  6 896 

 other changes  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  - 

 effect of movements in exchange rates  -  -  -  -  -  25  1 011  162  -  103  85  1 386 

	Balance	at	31	December	2008	1 	624	 	799	 	709	 	2	132	 	-	 	2	174	 	8	343	 	1	117	 	-	 	625	 	903	 	13	162	

 - 

 balance at 1 january 2009  624  799  709  2 132  -  2 174  8 343  1 117  -  625  903  13 162 

 depreciation charge for the year  542  501  493  1 536  -  936  5 954  1 114  -  668  609  9 279 

 other changes  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  - 

 effect of movements in exchange rates  -  -  -  -  -  (29)  (1 040)  (202)  -  (160)  (29)  (1 460)

	Balance	at	31	December	2009	2 	1	166	 	1	300	 	1	202	 	3	668	 	-	 	3	080	 	13	257	 	2	029	 	-	 	1	133	 	1	483	 	20	982	

 - 

 depreciation rate 3 10% - 20%  - - - 10% - 10% 20% 20% -

 useful lives 10 years -  5 years  - - - 10 years - 10 years 5 years  5 years -

	Net	carrying	amounts	

 At 1. januar 2008  7 588  -  1 201  8 789  22 691  712  16 830  -  -  -  1 358  41 590 

 At 1. januar 2009  12 677  501  768  13 946  106 980  2 014  50 913  10 308  12 276  6 193  971  189 654 

	At	31.	desember	2009	 	17	550	 	-	 	276	 	17	826	 	87	623	 	1	052	 	48	283	 	7	906	 	10	238	 	4	551	 	174	 	159	828	
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Goodwill

 goodwill at 31 december:  segment Amount owner share Acquired

 water mist engineering As  extinguishing solutions  47 762 100% 2007

 Fire eater A/s  extinguishing solutions  38 755 51% 2008

 simtronics Fire & gas Pte. ltd.  extinguishing solutions  1 106 100% 2008

	Total	Goodwill	 	87	623	

goodwill is not amortised, and the book value of nok 87 623 has been tested for impairment loss as per 31 december 2009. Recoverable 
amount for the cash-generating unit is based on the calculation of value in use. This calculation uses estimates for future cash flows based 
on actual operating profits over a five-year business plan. Cash flows for additional 5 years are derived by assuming a yearly growth-rate of 
 10-15% for the different cash flow generating units. in calculating the present value a discount rate of 12% before tax is used. 

in the impairement tests it is assumed that the companies in extinguishing solutions will have a sales growth of 30% from 2009 to 2010. 
in  subsequent years the following assumption are used; a growth of approximately 25%-30% the first three years, and a growth of 10% the 
 following years. 

The negative results in the extinguishing solutions division in 2009 are attributable to the product line for the nitrogen generators, where 
the marked was heavily reduced. it is within this product line where most of the non-recurring expenses are. The cost cutting measures and 
the order pipeline is taken into consideration in the impairment test of the goodwill. The board of directors report confirms this in the going 
 concern evaluation.

neither an increase in the discount rate of 500 basic points or a reduction in the expected net cash flows of 20 per cent would have resulted in 
a write-down of goodwill. other assumptions left unchanged. 

The added goodwill is mainly caused by re-negotations of the earn-out for eTech Process As.

Order	backlog
The book value at the beginning of the year arises entirely from the purchase of water mist engineering As (wme) in 2007. The remainder of 
the order backlog relates to identified excess value from the acquisitions of Fire eater A/s and eTech Process As, see note 26. simtronics AsA 
also carried out a smaller acquisition through the purchase of a business division in Technor safe ex As where nok 1 300 was identified as 
excess value relating to order backlog. 

Purchase price is amortised based on the expected delivery of the order backlog which existed at the purchase date. The amortisation plan is 
in practice degressive.

Capitalised	development	costs
Product development, where the criteria set out in iAs 38.57 are met, have been capitalised. Reference is made to accounting principles as 
described in note 1. Products where development has been completed, and also products currently under development, are based on existing 
technology and known markets. development is carried out either in cooperation with prospective customers and/or other companies. by the 
end of 2008 capitalised development costs relates to 2 product groups, and excess value in conjunction with the acquisition of simtronics sAs 
in 2006, together with Fire eater A/s and eTech Process As in 2008.

Customer	Relationships
in the acquisition of eTech Process As and Fire eater A/s excess value relating to customer relationships was identified. The value was 
 estimated to nok 632 and nok 8 646 respectively.

Brand	name
Fire eater A/s has the right to the use the brand name/ product name ineRgen. in the acquisition of Fire eater A/s the value of this right were 
measured by calculating the future saved royalty-cost.

Software
Fire eater A/s has developed its’ own software and database, which was valued at acquisition by estimating the initial cost.

Other
other intangible assets for simtronics AsA and simtronics group mainly comprises capitalised costs relating to a new eRP-system.

Expensed	research	and	development	expenditure
Research and development expenditures that do not satisfy the definition of assets have been recognised as expenses, and are nok 0 (2008: 
nok 323) in the parent company and nok 4 465 (2008: nok 2 679) in the group.
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Note 10 property, plaNt aNd equipmeNt 

simtronics AsA simtronics group 

 Cost 
Furniture 

and fixtures machinery equipment Total 
Furniture 

and fixtures machinery equipment Total 
 Figures in nok 1000 

 balance at 1 january 2008  374  413  1 099  1 885  526  1 864  1 943  4 333 

 Acquisitions through business combinations 4  -  -  -  -  6 512  2 722  1 320  10 553 

 other acquisitions  1 024  1 883  123  3 030  2 798  2 848  595  6 241 

 disposals  -  -  -  -  (1 250)  (1 163)  (47)  (2 460)

 effect of movements in exchange rates  -  -  -  -  703  287  397  1 387 

	Balance	at	31	December	2008	1 	1	398	 	2	296	 	1	221	 	4	915	 	9	289	 	6	557	 	4	208	 	20	054	

 balance at 1 january 2009  1 398  2 296  1 221  4 915  9 289  6 557  4 208  20 054 

 Acquisitions through business combinations 4  -  -  -  -  152  25  51  227 

 other acquisitions  205  1 571  674  2 451  2 109  2 295  2 988  7 391 

 disposals  -  -  -  -  -  -  (144)  (144)

 effect of movements in exchange rates  -  -  -  -  (626)  (374)  (364)  (1 365)

	Balance	at	31	December	2009	2 	1	603	 	3	867	 	1	895	 	7	366	 	10	923	 	8	502	 	6	738	 	26	163	

 depreciation and impairment losses 

 balance at 1 january 2008  145  134  398  677  187  735  1 006  1 928 

 Acquisitions through business combinations 4  4 090  1 611  688  6 389 

depreciation charge for the year  62  159  141  362  693  1 201  357  2 252 

 other chnages  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  - 

 disposals  -  -  -  -  (179)  (471)  -  (650)

 effect of movements in exchange rates  957  (244)  631  1 344 

	Balance	at	31	December	2008	1 	207	 	293	 	539	 	1	039	 	5	749	 	2	831	 	2	682	 	11	263	

 balance at 1 january 2009  207  293  539  1 039  5 749  2 831  2 682  11 263 

 Acquisitions through business combinations 4  31  5  9  45 

depreciation charge for the year  205  396  380  981  1 099  786  2 502  4 387 

 disposals  -  -  -  -  -  -  (41)  (41)

 effect of movements in exchange rates  -  -  -  -  (506)  (170)  (577)  (1 253)

	Balance	at	31	December	2009	2 	412	 	689	 	919	 	2	020	 	6	373	 	3	452	 	4	576	 	14	401	

 depreciation rate 3 10%  10-20%  10-33% 10%  10-20%  10-33% 

 useful lives 10 years 5-10 years 3-10 years 10 years 5-10 years 3-10 years 

 net carrying amounts 

 At 1 januar 2008  228  279  701  550  339  1 129  937  2 405 

 At 1 januar 2009  1 191  2 003  682  3 876  3 540  3 726  1 525  8 791 

	At	31	December	2009	 	1	191	 	3	179	 	976	 	5	346	 	4	550	 	5	050	 	2	162	 	11	762	

1)  exchange rates as of 31 december 2008 are used in calculating tangible assets of foreign subsidiaries.
2)  exchange rates as of 31 december 2009 are used in calculating tangible assets of foreign subsidiaries.
3)  All depreciation plans are linear. 
4)  Relates to the acquisition of eTech Process As and Fire eater As in 2008.
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Impairment	losses
no impairment losses have been recognised in 2009 (2008: nok 0). 

Guarantee	obligations
simtronics AsA has put up security in property, plant and equipment for the use of overdraft facilities. see note 16 for further information.

Operational	leases	of	offices
simtronics group rents its premises under an operating lease arrangement. The value of the premises is therefore not recognised in the bal-
ance sheet.

simtronics AsA has a rental agreement with Telefonfabrikken As for the premises in oslo. The rental agreement ends 30 june 2016, and the 
annual rent is nok 1 803. At the end of the rental period simtronics AsA has a renewal option of 10 years (5 + 5). 

simtronics AsA has in addition a rental agreement for the premises in stavanger. The agreement is with håland eiendom Finans As and the 
annual rate is nok 243 per year, with the agreement expiring on 31 july 2012. At the end of the rental period simtronics AsA has a renewal 
option of 5 years.

simtronics group has, in addition, rental agreements in its’ subsidiaries. The majority of the rental agreements have a duration until 2011, with 
a renewal option. 

Total expensed operational leases in 2009 is nok 9 141 (2008: nok 7 150). 

minimum lease payments under operational lease of offices

 simtronics AsA 2009  simtronics group 2009
 Figures in nok 1 000 

 less than one year  2 046  7 649 

 between one and five years  8 027  24 406 

 more than five years  3 866  19 548 

The group has at 31.12.2009 no agreement that commit simtronics AsA or the group to future buying of property, plant or equipment. 

Note 11 employee beNeFits 

 simtronics AsA  simtronics group 

2009 2008 2009 2008

  Figures in nok 1000

 20 245  17 103  wages and salaries  76 090  61 245 

 2 285  1 433  equity-settled share-based payment transactions  2 285  1 433 

 3 262  2 312  social security tax  12 891  9 140 

 1 047  1 576  Pension cost  4 769  3 731 

 1 437  3 666  other benefits  4 795  6 151 

 (3 593)  (4 115)  Capitalised as development costs  (3 593)  (5 129)

 -  -  Capitalised as manufacturing cost of inventory  -  (105)

	24	682	 	21	975	 	Total	personnel	costs	 	97	237	 	76	464	

 31  29  number of employed man-labour years 156 151

As of 31 december 2009 simtronics group has 160 employees (2008:170), of which 33 are employed in simtronics AsA, 32 in simtronics sAs, 
41 in water mist engineering As, 49 in Fire eater A/s and 5 in simtronics Fire and gas Pte. ltd.

The increase of personnel cost in simtronics AsA is related to a significant increase of share option cost and less capitalized development cost.

The increase of personnel cost for the group is related to among others, re-structuring cost in connection with merger of water mist engineer-
ing As and etech Process As, newly-hired employee in simtronics sAs, Fire eater A/s and simtronics Fire & gas Pte- ltd. The subsidiaries of 
Fire eater A/s are fully consolidated from 2009.
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Note 12 traNsaCtioNs with related parties 

Identification	of	related	parties
simtronics AsA has related party transactions with its subsidiaries (see note 14), and with members of tha board and group management. All 
transactions with related parties are based on the arms length principle. 

The Chairman of the board john Afseth was to the end of April 2009, also Chairman of the board in orion securities As. simtronics AsA used 
orion securities As as a financial advisor in the Technor transaction. All transactions are based on the arms length principle.

Information	regarding	2009	

share-
holding

share-
options

board 
fees salary bonus

Pension-
premium

other 
compensation

shares and share options in whole numbers, other amounts in nok 1000

Members	of	the	Board	

john Afseth (Chairman of the board)  1 777 271  100 000  300  -  -  -  - 

Tore Amundsen (member of the board)  30 000  100 000  180  -  -  -  - 

valborg lundegaard (member of the board)  -  100 000  180  -  -  -  - 

svein Roar sivertsen (member of the board)  10 000  250 000  120  728  -  40  6 

Total	for	members	of	the	Board 	1	817	271	 	550	000	 	780	 	728	 	-	 	40	 	6	

Members	of	Group	Management

Rune martini (President & Ceo)  200 000  1 250 000  -  1 705  500  104  7 

Frode Arnesen (CFo)  168 000  600 000  -  1 101  100  108  7 

Torbjørn laursen (general manager, Fire eater A/s)  6 972 370  -  -  1 040  539  228  188 

kjetil sivertsen 
(managing director, water mist engineering As)  1 673 880  250 000  -  910  -  -  6 

Claus Fossum (svP and managing director detection)  100 000  250 000  -  925  -  133  7 

Total	for	members	of	Group	Management 	9	114	250	 	2	350	000	 	-	 	5	681	 	1	139	 	573	 	215	

Total	compensation	to	Group	Management: 2009

short term employee benefits  7 035 

Post employee benefits  573 

share-based payments  - 

Total 	7	609	

* no share-options have beent exercised in the period 2007 - 2009

Total number of persons defined as management is 5. loans to employees as of 31 december 2009 amounted nok 0. The information above 
provides a thourough overview of compensation of members of the board and group management for 2009. 
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Information	regarding	2008

share-
holding

share-
options

board 
fees salary bonus

Pension-
premium

other 
compensation

shares and share options in whole numbers, other amounts in nok 1000

Members	of	the	Board

john Afseth (Chairman of the board)  1 672 271  100 000  275  -  -  -  - 

Tore Amundsen (member of the board)  -  100 000  165  154  -  -  - 

valborg lundegaard (member of the board)  -  100 000  180  -  -  -  - 

svein Roar sivertsen (member of the board)  10 000  250 000  110  624  -  47  29 

Total	for	members	of	the	Board 	1	682	271	 	550	000	 	730	 	778	 	-	 	47	 	29	

Members	of	Group	Management

Rune martini (President & Ceo)  200 000  1 250 000  1 636  -  78  6 

Frode Arnesen (CFo)  168 000  600 000  -  697  -  92  3 

Torbjørn laursen (general manager, Fire eater A/s)  4 851 370  -  -  897  376  184  3 

kjetil sivertsen  
(managing director, water mist engineering As)  601 000  250 000  -  843  -  15  22 

Claus Fossum  
(svP business development and marketing)  100 000  250 000  -  828  -  99  6 

Terje engervik (managing director etech Process As)  -  -  -  945  -  11  21 

Total	for	members	of	Group	Management 	5	920	370	 	2	350	000	 	-	 	5	846	 	376	 	479	 	61	

Total	compensation	to	Group	Management: 2008

short term employee benefits  6 222 

Post employee benefits  526 

share-based payments  - 

Total 	6	748	

*  no share-options have been exercised in the period 2007-2008.
** Frode Arnesen was appointed 01.05.2008, and the compensation described above relates to this period.

Total numbers of persons defined as management is 6. loans to employees as at 31 december 2008 amounted nok 0. The information above 
provides a thourough overview of compensation of members of the board and group management for 2008.

Further	information	on	compensation	for	2009	and	on	the	above	table
1) Renumeration of the Ceo: President and Ceo Rune martini received nok 1 705 in salary in 2009, and is part of simtronics AsA pension 

plan with the same conditions as other emplyees. in 2008 Rune martini earned a bonus of nok 500, which was paid in 2009. no bonus 
earned in 2009. in 2010, Rune martini can earn a maximum bonus of 37,5% of his base salary. 
Rune martini has been granted 250 000 options in simtronics AsA in 2008. 83 333 options were vested as at 31 december 2009. in 2007, 
Rune martini was granted 1 000 000 options. of these, 666 667 was vested as at 31 december 2009.

2) shareholding
 The column shows the number of shares owned by board members, members of group management, companies controlled by them, and 

their related parties. john Afseth owns 50 000 shares privately, and 1 727 271 shares through Carpe diem Afseth As (where he owns 100 
percent of the shares).

3) share-options
 The column shows the total number of options granted as of 31 december 2009. no options have been exercised in 2009, and there are no 

entirely vested option plans as of 31 december 2009.
4) board fees
 The column comprises board fees paid in 2009. The board held 14 board meetings in 2009. The audit committe held 2 meetings (Tore 

Amundsen and hans inge nerby)
5) salary
 The column comprises ordinary salary paid in 2009.
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6) bonus
 in 2009, bonus earned in 2008 by Ceo Rune martini and CFo Frode Arnesen has been paid.
7) Pension Premium
 The Company has established a collective pension scheme. The coloum shows what has been paid in 2009. see note 19 for further infor-

mation regarding pensions.
8) other compensation
 The column comprises other benefits received during the year, including car allowance, telephone allowance etc.

Renumeration	policy	for	Group	Management
in accordance with The joint stock Public Companies Act 6-16a, the board has prepared a statement outlining the principles for Ceo- and 
other management compensation. The fundamental priciple for management compensation is that the compensation and benefits are to be 
competitive in order for simtronics AsA to attract and retain competent management personell.

senior managers are paid a fixed salary and under certain circumstances may be offered variable compensation based on results achieved. in 
addition to fixed and variable salaries, senior managers are offered fringe benefits in the form of free mobile phone, company car etc.

The company want to offers remuneration in the form of share-based payments to its senior managers. such share-option programs will be in 
compliance with the share options programs implemented as of 31 december 2009. Final resolution will be decided by the general Assembly.

The company’s remuneration of senior managers for 2009 has been in compliance with the statement on management compensation approved 
by the Annual general meeting on 17 june 2009 .

Transactions	with	subsidiaries
Transactions with subsidiaries which are considered related parties are eliminated in the consolidated group accounts and thus not included 
this note.

Simtronics	ASA’s	outstanding	balances	with	subsidiaries	31	December

Accounts Receiv. long term receiv. Accounts payabl. long term pbl.

2009 2008 2009 2008 2009 2008 2009 2008

 simtronics sAs 5 565 3 088 2 336 134 94

 water mist engineering As 7 342 7 877 19 324 20 324 3 193 30

 simtronics singapore 31 75 61

 Fire eater A/s 909 3 861 123 2 450

 ineros Russia 50% 

	Total	 	7	372	 	14	351	 	26	348	 	22	660	 	3	511	 	2	574	 	-	 	-	

Expensed	auditors’	fee

 simtronics AsA   simtronics group  

 Audit  799  1 712 

 Audit related services  1 526  1 541 

 Tax related services  -  83 

 other services  2 397  2 452 

	Total	 	4	722	 	5	788	

 * Fee without vAT 

Total fees to kPmg are nok 5 150, and fees to others than kPmg are nok 638.
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Note 13 share-based paymeNts

simtronics AsA has granted two share-option plans, one in 2007 and one in 2008 with a total of 4 150 000 shares. The share-option plans gives 
them the right to aquire shares in the parent company. The share-option plans are divided into three parts, whereby one third of the shares-
options have a vesting period of 12 months, one third have a vesting period of 24 months and one third have a vesting period of 36 months. 
 
Fair value of options is calculated at grant date and is expensed over the vesting period according to iFRs 2.

Terms	of	existing	share-options	plans

number if options  strike  vesting date  expiry 

 shares and options in whole numbers, other amounts in nok 1 000 

 simtronics group 

 share-option plan may 2007  666 667 2,46 02.05.2008 03.05.2011

 share-option plan may 2007  666 667 2,46 04.05.2009 03.05.2011

 share-option plan may 2007  666 667 2,46 03.05.2010 03.05.2011

	2	000	000	

 share-option plan February 2008  516 667 4,52 06.02.2009 06.02.2012

 share-option plan February 2008  516 667 4,52 06.02.2010 06.02.2012

 share-option plan February 2008  516 667 4,52 06.02.2011 06.02.2012

 share-option plan February 2008  200 000 4,60 06.02.2009 06.02.2012

 share-option plan February 2008  200 000 4,60 06.02.2010 06.02.2012

 share-option plan February 2008  200 000 4,60 06.02.2011 06.02.2012

	2	150	000	

	Total	outstanding	options	 	4	150	000	

The sole vesting criteria for share-options is continued employment. share/options that are vested may be retained by the employee in the 
event of termination of contract, and are excercisable within the given expiry date.

There is a reinvestment commitment arising from the share/options. when excercising options, the share-option holder is required to reinvest 
40 percent of gains before tax, in company shares. shares which are acquired have a minimum holding period of 12 months.

At 31. desember 2009 none of the existing share-option plans have been exercised.

Simtronics	ASA		 	 	 	
The share-option plan for employees in simtronics AsA is identical with the plan for the group. employees in the parent company has as of 31 
december 2009 a total of 1 750 000 share-options outstanding in «share-option plan may 2007» and 1 900 000 share-options outstanding in 
«share-option plan February 2008». in total there is 3 650 000 share-options.    
    
	Fair	value	of	granted	options			 	 	

 simtronics group simtronics AsA

 2008 plan  2007 plan  2008 plan  2007 plan 

 Fair value at grant date  3 263  1 386  2 882  319 

 Average share price at grant date  4,54  2,46  4,55  2,46 

 Average strike price  4,54  2,46  4,55  2,46 

 expected volatility in percent 70% 60% 70% 60%

 expected dividends  -  -  -  - 

 Risk free interest rate 4,29% 6,00% 4,29% 6,00%
    
Fair value assessment is performed using the black & scholes’ option pricing model, applying assumptions as described above. This assess-
ment is based on the assumption that share-option holders will excercise the options at the first possible date.    
    
expected volatility is based on historic volatility, adjusted for expected changes in future volatility based on publicly available information. The 
risk free rate is calculated based on average interest rate for the vesting period.
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	Number	of	options	and	weighted	average	strike	price	is

2009 2008

number of 
share-options

weighted average 
strike price

number of 
share-options

weighted average 
strike price

options outstanding as per 1 january  4 150 000  3,54  2 600 000  2,46 

options excercised  -  -  -  - 

options cancelled/forfeited  -  -  (600 000)  2,46 

options granted in the period  -  -  2 150 000  4,55 

Outstanding	options	as	at	31	December	 	4	150	000	 	3,54	 	4	150	000	 	3,54	

outstanding share-options as at 31 december 2009 have an average expiry of 1,8 years. options cancelled relates to a former employee in 
simtronics AsA who left the company during 2008.

	Share	option	cost	in	the	income	statement		 	 	 	

 simtronics AsA simtronics group

2009 2008 2009 2008

share-options granted in 2007 416 427 416 427

share-options granted in 2008 1 869 1 006 1 869 1 006

Total	share-option	cost	in	income	statement	 2	285 1	433 2	285 1	433

share-option costs are presented as payroll and related costs in the income statement. A provision of nok 100 has been made for possible so-
cial security tax for the 2007 share-option plan. The 2008 share-option plan is not «in the money», no provision for social security tax has been 
made on this plan. 

Convertible	Loan	 	 	 	
simtronics AsA has in 2009 adopted a convertible loan at a par value of nok 71.575. see note 27 for further information. The loan can be con-
verted into shares in simtronics AsA on the request from the lender based on a share price of nok 2,36. if the loan is converted, there will be 
issued 30.326.271 shares.    

    
Note 14 iNvestmeNts iN subsidiaries     

	Simtronics	ASA	has	the	following	investments	in	subsidiaries	 	 	 	

 group company  location 
 vote- and 

owner share 
book value 

31 december 2009 
book value 

31 december 2008 

 Figures in nok 1000 

 Fire eater A/s  hillerød, danmark 51%  62 038  62 038 

 eTech Process As  kristiansand, norge 100%  -  31 822 

 simtronics sAs  Aubagne, Cedex, Frankrike 100%  11 100  11 100 

 water mist engineering As  kristiansand, norge 100%  63 813  25 291 

 simtronics Fire & gas Pte ltd  singapore 100%  410  - 

	Total	investment	in	subsidiaries	 	137	360	 	130	251	

settlement of contigent and deferred acquisition cost for eTech Process As and water mist engineering As. see note 26 for further information 

The	merger	of	Water	Mist	Engineering	AS	and	Etech	Process	AS		 	 	 	
The subsidiaries eTech Process As and water mist engineering As merged with effect from 1. january 2009. As a consequence of this merger, 
the booked value at 31.12.2009 is presented as the total cost of these two companies on the line for water mist engineering As, the take-over 
company.    
    
Simtronics	Hong	Kong	Ltd		 	 	 	
 simtronics AsA have in addition to the above mentioned subsidiaries, a 100% share in the recently established company in hong kong. due to 
the principle of essentiality, the company is not consolidated.     

simtronics AsA has no investments in associates or joint ventures.     
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Note 15 liabilitis to FiNaNCial iNstitutioNs 

 simtronics AsA  simtronics group 

2009 2008 2009 2008

 Figures in nok 1000

 64 235  -  Convertible loan  64 235  - 

	Long-term	liabilities	

 -  64 295  bank loan  -  64 307 

 -  -  other long-term interest bearing liabilities  4 265  4 936 

	-	 	64	295	 Total 	4	265	 	69	243	

	Short-term	liabilities	

 35 577  8 160  short-term part of bank loan 1  41 077  8 619 

 -  -  short-term part of financial leases  550  550 

 47 523  36 845  kassekreditt  47 523  54 065 

	83	100	 	45	005	 	Sum	 	89	150	 	63	234	
 
1)  due to breach of one of the covenants, the loan from dnb noR is reported as short term liability. 

Bank	loan	
As per 31 december 2009 simtronics AsA had a bank loan of nok 35 577. The loan have a term of maturity of 5 years from the payout date, 
and a 10 year installment plan. This plan requires that the loan shall be repaid based on a 10 year installment plan for the first 60 months, and 
repayment of the remaining loan balance at 60 months. The loan was originally of nok 47 600 and was paid out in February 2008. The loans 
originally of nok 15 000 and 19 000 was fully repaid in 2009.

water mist engineering As have three risk loans in innovasjon norge of nok 1 900, nok 665 and nok 2 520. The loans have a term of maturity 
10 years from the payout date, and a 10 year installment plan. The loans were originally of nok 2 000, nok 700 and 2 800 repectively.

Overdraft	facility
simtronics AsA has on behalf of the group an overdraft facility of nok 50 000. The overdraft facilities in water mist engineering As has been 
liquidated in 2009 in accordance with refinancing of the group through a convertible loan. Fire eater A/s has an overdraft facility of dkk 8 000.

Covenants
 in conjunction with the establishment of the above-mentioned loan of nok 47 600, new covenants were agreed upon in december 2007 for all 
simtronics’ loan arrangements with dnb noR. The updated covenants are as follows: 

* The book value of the group’s equity (in nok 1 000 and in per cent of the total capital), and the ratio net interest-bearing debt (nibd)/ebiTdA for the group, shall have the following devel-
opment over the next three years:

	 	Book	value	of	equity		 	Equity	%		 	NIBD/EBITDA
31 december 2009 > 80000 > 25% > 3,5
31 december 2010 > 90000 > 30% > 3,0
31 december 2011 > 100000 > 30%  > 2,5

The measurement of nibd/ebiTdA is to take place quarterly on a continuous basis, with the first measurement to made for the previous four 
quarters on 31 december 2008. interest-bearingdebt is defined as current and non current liabilities to financial institutions. net interest-
bearing debt is defined as interest bearing debt less cash balances.

Simtronics	ASA	shall	not	pay	dividends	without	the	bank’s	consent.
Reference is made to note 16 on collaterals where it is shown that for loans where borrowing has taken place as of 31 december 2008. A cash 
deposit of nok 30 000 is required.

At 21. october 2009 simtronics group has received a waiver from dnb noR for the loan covenants. The waiver is valid for the third and fourth 
quarter 2009.The bank loan from dnb noR is therefore considered as short term liability. simtronics AsA are at 31 december 2009 in breach 
with the ebiTdA/ nibd covenant.
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simtronics AsA have received a waiver from dnb noR for 2009 and 2010. A condition for the waiver is that simtronics group’s ebiTdA, develop 
according to the internal quarterly estimates that the company has for 2010, taken into consideration 20% headroom, compared to the com-
pany’s own estimates for the ebiTdA development. The first measurement under the covenants for the original loan agreement will take place 
after first quarter 2011.

in 2009 simtronics AsA was granted a convertible loan from the company’s largest share holder, Autronica Fire & security As. This loan has 
similar covenant structure as the loan from dnb noR. simtronics AsA has received a confirmation from Autronica Fire & security, that they do 
not consider simtronics AsA to be in breach with the covenants, as far as dnb noR has given a waiver. 

Simtronics	ASA

2009 2008

 Currency 
nominal 

interest rate 
 year of 

maturity  Face value 
 Carrying 

Amount 
 Face 
value 

 Carrying 
Amount 

 Figures in nok 1000 

 secured bank loan  nok  niboR + 1,00% 2013 47 600 35 577 47 600 44 030

 secured bank loan  nok  niboR + 0,80% 2013 15 000 0 15 000 12 750

 secured bank loan  nok  niboR + 1,00% 2013 19 000 0 19 000 15 675

 overdraft facility  nok  niboR + 0,60% 50 000 47 523 50 000 36 845

	Convertible	Loan	 	NOK	 	7%	 2012 71	575 64	235 	-	 	-	

Total	interest-bearing	liabilities 203	175 147	335 131	600 109	300

	Simtronics	group	

2009 2008

 Currency 
nominal 

interest rate 
year of 

maturity  Face value 
 Carrying 

Amount 
 Face 
value 

 Carrying 
Amount 

 Figures in nok 1000 

 secured bank loan  nok  niboR + 1,00% 2013 47 600 35 577 47 600 44 030

 secured bank loan  nok  niboR + 0,80% 2013 15 000 0 15 000 12 750

 secured bank loan  nok  niboR + 1,00% 2013 19 000 0 19 000 15 675

 secured bank loan  nok  7,00% 2018 2 000 1 800 2 000 1 900

 secured bank loan  nok  7,00% 2018 700 630 700 665

 secured bank loan  nok  7,70% 2018 2 800 2 520 2 800 2 800

 overdraft facility  nok  niboR + 0,60% 50 000 47 523 70 000 54 065

 overdraft facility  dkk  7,50% 8 943 5 500 10 560 46

	Convertible	Loan	 	NOK	 	7,00%	 2012 71	575 64	235 	-	 	-	

Total	interest-bearing	liabilities 217	618 157	785 167	660 131	931
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Note 16 guaraNtees aNd Collaterals 

Figures in nok 1000 

Simtronics	ASA	

Bank	guarantees	
simtronics AsA has obtained guarantees for nok 32 289 as of 31 december 2009 on behalf of simtronics AsA, simtronics sAs and water mist 
engineering As. nok 32 289 of the guarantees is covered by the agreement with dnb noR for nok 35 000. The agreement on the guarantee 
terms contains equivalent loan conditions for the overdraft facility and bank loan. see note 15 for further information.

Simtronics	group		 	 	 	 	
guarantees are generally obtained via the parent company simtronics AsA. Fire eater A/s has obtained guarantees for nok 1 697.

Collaterals		 	 	 	 	
in conjunction with simtronics AsA’s bank loan and overdraft facility, the group has put up security in the form of inventiories, outstanding ac-
counts receivables, property, plant and equipment, and 100% of the shares in water mist engineering As, Fire eater A/s and simtronics sAs. in 
addition, there is a requirement for a nok 30 000 cash deposit, and a negative pledge has been given for the subsidiaries simtronics sAs and 
water mist engineering As.

net book values as at 31 december 2009 of these assets where as follows: inventories nok 20 575, outstanding accounts receivables nok 11 
548, property, plant and equipment nok 5 346, water mist engineering As shares nok 63 813, Fire eater A/s shares nok 62 038 and simtron-
ics sAs shares nok 11 100.

Note 17 equity aNd shareholders  

Simtronics	ASA	

share 
capital

share premium 
reserve

other paid-
in capital

Total paid-
in capital

Retained 
earnings

Total 
equity

number of 
shares

 Figures in Tnok 

	Balance	as	at	01	January	2008	 	8	879	 	62	702	 	-	 	-	 	(537) 	71	043	 	60	749	754	

 Profit (loss) after tax  -  (2 483)  (1 433)  -  537  (3 379)  - 

 Transaction with owners 

 share issue through debt conversion  630  19 516  -  -  -  20 146  4 308 370 

 share-based payment expense  -  -  1 433  -  -  1 433  - 

	Balance	as	at	31	December	2008	 	9	509	 	79	735	 	-	 	-	 	-	 	89	244	 	65	058	124	

Profit (loss) after tax  -  (20 672)  (4 785)  -  -  (25 457)  - 

 Transaction with owners  -  - 

 share issue through debt conversion  644  12 706  -  -  -  13 350  4 405 387 

 equity component convertible loan  -  -  2 500  -  -  2 500  - 

	Share-based	payment	expense	 	-	 	-	 	2	285	 	-	 	-	 	2	285	 	-	

	Balance	as	at	31	December	2009	 	10	153	 	71	769	 	-	 	-	 	-	 	81	922	 	69	463	511	
         
Par	value	of	shares			 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
Par value per share is nok 0,146158358          
         
Distributable	equity		 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
distributable equity according to the norwegian Act relating to public limited liability companies, as at 31 december 2009 amounted to nok 0 
(2008: nok 0).          
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Simtronics	group	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

share 
capital

share premium
 reserve

other paid-
in capital

Currency trans-
lation differences

Retained 
earnings

Total majority-
interest equity

minority-
interests

Total 
equity

Figures in Tnok 

Balance	as	at	01	January	2008	 	8	879	 	62	702	 	-	 	(435) 	6	662	 	77	808	 	-	 	77	808	

Profit (loss) after tax  -  (2 483)  (1 433)  18 472  12 890  27 446  10 199  37 645 

minority interest from acqusition  -  -  -  -  -  -  23 374  23 374 

Transaction with owners  - 

share issue through debt conversion  630  19 516  -  -  -  20 146  -  20 146 

share-based payment expense  -  -  1 433  -  -  1 433  -  1 433 

Balance	as	at	31	December	2008	 	9	509	 	79	735	 	-	 	18	034	 	19	549	 	126	827	 	33	573	 	160	400	

Profit (loss) after tax  -  (20 672)  (4 785)  (13 536)  (19 098)  (58 091)  (3 526)  (61 616)

minority interest from acqusition  -  -  -  -  -  -  (4 709)  (4 709)

Transaction with owners 

share issue through debt conversion  644  12 706  -  -  -  13 350  -  13 350 

equity component convertible loan  -  -  2 500  -  -  2 500  -  2 500 

share-based payment expense  -  -  2 285  -  -  2 285  -  2 285 

Balance	as	at	31	December	2009	 10	153	 	71	769	 	-	 	4	498	 	451	 	86	871	 	25	338	 	112	209	

Translation	reserve	
Translation reserve comprises all foreign exchange differences arising from the translation of the financial statements of foreign operations 
that are not integrated to the operations of the company. 

Earnings	per	share	
basic and diluted earnings per share
The calculation of basic and diluted earnings per share is based on the net profit to ordinary shares of nok -44 555 (2008: nok 8 973) and a 
weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during 2009 of 68 545 722 before diluting and 68 454 722 including diluting (2008: 64 
243 710 before diluting and 70 038 303 including diluting).

2009 2008

 net profit after minority interests  (44 553)  8 973 

 weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding  68 545 722  64 243 710 

 number of share-options outstanding  4 750 000  4 750 000 

 Agreed future issue of shares 1  -  1 492 537 

 Potential future issue of shares 2, 3  30 326 271  4 845 991 

	Weighted	average	number	of	ordinary	shares	outstanding	including	diluted	shares	 	68	545	722	 	70	038	303	

 basic earnings per share  (0.650) 0.140

 diluted earnings per share  (0.650) 0.128
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2009 2008

 number of ordinary shares outstanding 1 january  65 058 124  60 749 754 

 effect on increase in share capital  3 487 598  1 255 150 

 effect of agreed future issue of shares  -  2 238 806 

	Weighted	average	number	of	ordinary	shares	of	31	December	 	68	545	722	 	64	243	710	
         
1) As at 31 december 2008, simtronics AsA had obliged to issue 2 238 806 shares on 14 may 2010 related to the acqiusition of water mist engineering As. when calculating basic- and diluted 

earnings per share for 2008, these shares have been included as outstanding shares. on 15 march 2009 it was agreed settle this liability through a share subscription 18 march 2009.
2) As at 31 december 2008, simtronics AsA had agreed contingent compensation related to acquisition of water mist engineering As in 2007 (up to nok 4 000) and eTech Process As in 2008 

(up to nok 20 000). The agreements contained clauses that the contingent compensation could be settled with shares. As at 31 december 2008 it was made provisions of nok 4 000 and 
nok 20 000 respectively for these liabilities. when calculating diluted earnings per share for 2008, 4 845 991 shares are included as the number of shares that would be issued if these 
liabilities would be excercised. on 15 march 2009 it was agreed to settle this liability through a share subscription 18 march 2009.

3)  simtronics AsA has a convertible loan of nok 71 575. The loan was acquired 18 november 2009 and may be converted into shares at a share value of 2,36 at the lenders requirement. The 
maximum future issue of shares is 30,3 million shares. The potential share issue does not have diluting effect in 2009, as the diluting effect is positive.

The	company’s	largest	shareholders	registered	at	31	December	2009	

shareholder  number of shares  % ownership 

AuTRoniCA FiRe & seCuiTy As   18 300 000 26.34%

FiRe eATeR holding A/s   6 972 370 10.04%

mP Pensjon   2 278 556 3.28%

CARPe diem AFseTh As   1 727 271 2.49%

Tinde As  1 673 880 2.41%

oRi invesT As  1 507 090 2.17%

kÅRe mikAl  mikAlsen   1 437 000 2.07%

RAgnAR  syveRTsen   1 245 000 1.79%

AgAT As   1 000 000 1.44%

ingeFo 1 As   852 000 1.23%

oTTo Teksum  lund   805 000 1.16%

mARgenTum As   500 000 0.72%

PARTRedeRieT mAsT Ans   500 000 0.72%

ToRe jAn  PAulsen   500 000 0.72%

engeRvik TeChnology  483 964 0.70%

RunesTAd invesTeRing As   480 000 0.69%

odd inge  skÅR   463 000 0.67%

kARsTen  hAgen   439 000 0.63%

TRond gunnAR  beRg   432 000 0.62%

vidAR  øvsTedAl   400 000 0.58%

Total shares owned by the 20 largest shareholders  41 996 131 60.46%

other shareholders  27 467 380 39.54%

Total	 	69	463	511	 100.00%

shares owned by norwegian shareholders  61 256 601 88.19%

Shares	owned	by	foreign	shareholders	 	8	206	910	 11.81%

Total	 	69	463	511	 100.00%
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Note 18 FiNaNCial iNstrumeNts         
        
Figures in Tnok         

        
The simtronics group is exposed to credit-, interest rate- and currency risk in the course of its ordinary business. in order to maintain an 
 acceptable level of risk in these areas, ongoing evaluations of the actual currency risk are carried out, based on matching turnover and cost on 
both nok and euR. in order to limit interest rate risk, ongoing evaluations of swAP solutions for existing credits are carried out.  
 
Credit	risk		 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
simtronics AsA
historically the group’s losses on trade receivables have been modest. management has a credit policy in place, and the exposure to credit risk 
is monitored on an ongoing basis. Credit checks are carried out for all customers who request credit above a given amount. simtronics AsA 
has implemented a factoring system with dnb noR Finans As through which dnb noR Finans As provides assistance in credit checks. For 
subsidiary companies an evaluation of prepayment is used and letter of credit for foreign customers.      
      
At the reporting date there was no significant concentration of credit risk. Through the factoring agreement, simtronics AsA has entered into 
an agreement for providing credit assurance for trade receivables.         
        
Total	value	of	financial	assets	representing	maximal	credit	exposure

 simtronics AsA  simtronics group 

 Carrying amount  Carrying amount 

2009 2008 2009 2008

 Available held for sale assets  -  -  -  - 

held-to-maturity investments  -  -  -  - 

 Financial assets designated at fair value through profit or loss  -  -  -  - 

 Financial assets classified as held for trading  -  -  -  - 

 loans and receivables  13 334  17 497  62 444  85 069 

 Cash and cash equivalents  1 413  4 058  13 673  8 224 

 interest rate swaps used for hedging  -  -  -  - 

 Forward exchange contracts used for hedging  -  -  -  - 

	Other	forward	exchange	contracts	 	-	 	-	 	-	 	-	

	Total	 	14	747	 	21	555	 	76	116	 	93	293	

	Regions	where	the	credit	exposure	is	(external	receivables)

 simtronics AsA  simtronics group 

 short term  long term  short term  long term 

2009 2008 2009 2008 2009 2008 2009 2008

 norway  2 622  6 720  28  419  15 708  19 633  3 129  283 

 France  -  -  -  -  11 072  13 678  208  247 

 denmark  7  80  -  -  5 581  5 572  394  467 

 The netherlands  1 220  1 084  -  -  1 545  1 187  -  - 

 Rest of europe  5 169  4 800  -  -  9 726  18 807  -  - 

 korea  -  -  -  -  297  789  -  - 

 Asia/Pacific  3 316  4 593  98  409  12 016  25 182  98  409 

 America  918  151  -  -  6 356  151  -  - 

	Africa	 	82	 	69	 	-	 	-	 	143	 	69	 	-	 	-	

	Total	 	13	334	 	17	497	 	125	 	828	 	62	444	 	85	069	 	3	829	 	1	406	
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	Credit	exposure	sorted	by	customer	segments		 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

 short term  long term  short term  short term 

2009 2008 2009 2008 2009 2008 2009 2008

 wholesale customers  13 334  17 497  -  419  37 748  52 390  208  530 

 end user customers  -  -  -  -  24 696  32 679  3 101  - 

 other  -  -  125  409  -  -  520  876 

	Total	 	13	334	 	17	497	 	125	 	828	 	62	444	 	85	069	 	3	829	 	1	406	

Liquidity	risk
The simtronics group has since it was established in 2007, had a considerable need for capital tied up into acquisitions and integration of these 
companies. simtronics AsA’s access to financing and liquidity have been secured through long-term and short-term loans from the main bank 
dnb noR. As a result of weaker market conditions and considerable restructuring charges in 2009, simtronics AsA was in breach with one of 
the loan covenants. see note 15 for further information.

The credit and equity market has altered significantly in 2009 and the group has needed to use most of the accessible credit in the established 
credit agreements. At the end of 2009 simtronics AsA’s access to liquidity was improved through a convertible loan. The convertible loan has 
the same covenants as for the loan in dnb noR. see note 27 for further information.

simtronics group has during 2009 been awarded several large contracts for delivery of active fire fighting systems for customers in the middle 
east. The first contracts awarded in the summer 2009 were based on payment at completion. Payment was secured through letter of Credits. 
however this payment structure has been a strain on the group’s cash flow, and will continue for the first three quarters of 2010. Actions have 
been implemented to better harmonize payments from customer with payment to vendors.

The large contracts awarded the group in 2010 is based on payment according to milestones in the projects. in this manner it is expected that 
the new projects will not strain the cash flow as in 2009. The liquidity situation is expected to be improved at the end of 2010.

in addition to the strained liquidity for financing large projects, the group has had major negative cash effects related to the rejected attempt 
to acquire the electrotech division of Technor, fees for financial advisory related to the convertible loan and for the settlement of the etech 
 Process earn-out, see note 25, 26 and 27 for further information.

in addition to the abovementioned actions, the board of directors also considers other measures to secure further financing for further growth, 
and to improve the working capital. Among the considered actions will be to ask the 2010 Annual general meeting for authority to increase the 
companys share capital.

based on the established loan and credit agreements and the condition of these, the 2009 positive net cash from operations, and a defined cost 
cutting program, it is the managements’ assessment that the access to capital and credit will not be a restriction for the development of the 
Company

The group has established a cash pool system which ensures that the group companies have necessary liquidity flexibility. This also ensures 
that the parent company has overall control of the liquidity that is availible at any given time within the group.

The parent company had in 2009 a net cash flow of nok (2 645), of which nok (1 947) was from operating activities. Corresponding figures for 
the group were a net cash flow of nok 2 273, of which nok 6 094 was from operating activities.

The table below shows the expected due dates of financial obligations based on contract. The loan from dnb noR has a 5 year term based on a 
10 year installment plan, such that installments are based on a 10 year plan for the first 60 months, with payment of the outstanding amount at 
60 months. 60 months after the payout date, the remaining loan balance must be repaid, unless the partners have agreed othervise. other non-
current interest-bearing debt is water mist engineering As loans from innovasjon norge. in the calculation of the interest costs on the loan, an 
interest rate of 4 per cent is applied. see note 15 for further information.

As per note 23, the company had nok 1 413 in available funds as at 31 december 2009. in addition, the company has available overdraft 
 facilities mentioned below and in note 15.

simtronics AsA has been granted a convertible loan from the largest shareholder, Autronica Fire and security As, of nok 71 575. The basic 
loan terms is fixed interest at 7 per cent, and no installments until the loan is due. see note 27 for further information.
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Simtronics	ASA

Carrying 
amount 

Cash flows in 
accordance with contract 

 6 mths 
or less  6-12 mths  1-2 years  2-5 years 

more than 
5 years 

 bank loan  35 577  40 672  3 273  3 218  6 101  28 080  - 

 Convertible loan  64 235  86 605  2 505  2 505  5 010  76 585  - 

 overdraft facility  47 523  47 523  47 523  -  -  -  - 

 Trade payables  11 908  11 908  11 908  -  -  -  - 

 159 243  186 708  65 209  5 723  11 111  104 665  - 
        
        
	Simtronics	group		 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

 Carrying 
amount 

 Cash flows in 
accordance with contract 

 6 mths or 
less  6-12 mths  1-2 years  2-5 years 

 more than 
5 years 

 bank loan  40 527  46 379  3 644  3 584  6 816  30 093  2 241 

 Convertible loan  64 235  86 605  2 505  2 505  5 010  76 585  - 

 overdraft facility  47 523  47 523  47 523  -  -  -  - 

 Trade payables  41 672  41 672  41 672  -  -  -  - 

 193 957  222 179  95 345  6 089  11 826  106 678  2 241 
        
Interest	rate	risk	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
simtronics AsA
interest rate risk arises in the short- and long-term as a result of part of the Company debt being subject to a floating interest rate. simtron-
ics AsA has a bank overdraft limit of nok 50 000, and as at 31 december 2009 the company had drawn nok 47 523 from this overdraft facility. 
in addition simtronics AsA has a loan (where security has been put up) of nok 47 600, and as at 31 december 2009 a total of nok 35 577 had 
been drawn (see note 15 for further information).        

both the overdraft facility and collateral loan are subject to floating interest rates, at niboR +60 basis points for the overdraft facility and ni-
boR +100 basis points for the loan of nok 47 600.         

A change in the interest rate of +/- 1 per cent have increased/decreased the interest expenses by +/- nok 1 090 respectively.  
 
simtronics AsA has per 31 december 2009 given an interest-bearing loan to simtronics sAs and water mist engineering As. simtronics AsA 
has no external interest bearing receivables as at 31 december 2009.

simtronics group
The group has in addition to the parent company, an overdraft facility in Fire eater A/s. The subsidiaries have no bank loans, but water mist 
engineering As has three loans from innovasjon norge of nok 2 000, nok 700 and nok 2 800, where a total of 4 950 had been drawn. Fire 
eater A/s overdraft facility is limited to dkk 8 000

both the overdraft facility and collateral loan are subject to floating interest rates. A change in interest rate of +/- 1 per cent would have in-
creased/decreased the interest expenses by +/- nok 1 313 respectively.

Currency	risk
simtronics group is exposed to changes in nok relative to other currencies. Approximately 54 per cent of the parent company income is in 
foreign currency, while the group has approximately 66 per cent of income in foreign currency. An increase in the value of nok will have a 
negative impact on the result. The group trades predominantly in nok and euR.       
 
To some extent, the group uses foreign exchange contracts in order to do economical hedge of expected future cash flows.

 Contract  expiry Contract-amount

 sales usd 2010 usd  544 000 

	Total	USD/NOK	 	544	000	
        
The value of the foreign exchange contract was nok -83 at 31. desember 2009. 
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	The	split	of	revenues	in	different	currencies	was	as	follows	

 simtronics AsA  simtronics group 

2009 2008 2009 2008

 nok 46% 64% 34% 46%

 euR 52% 33% 45% 37%

 dkk 0% 0% 13% 9%

 usd 3% 3% 4% 8%

 sgd 0% 0% 4% 0%

100% 100% 100% 100%

The	following	exchange	rates	are	used	throughout	the	year:	

 Average  Reporting date 

2009 2008 2009 2008

 euR 8.72 8.22 8.32 9.87

 dkk 1.17 1.11 1.12 1.32

 sgd 4.23 4.12
        
	The	distribution	of	the	consolidated	balance	sheet	per	31	December	2009	was	as	follows:	

 nok  dkk  euR  sgd  Total 

 Total intangible fixed assets 96% 1% 3% 0% 100%

 Total tengible fixed assets 67% 30% 2% 1% 100%

 Total financial assets 100% 0% 0% 0% 100%

 Total inventories 55% 40% 4% 0% 100%

 Total receivables 44% 7% 45% 4% 100%

 Total cash and cash equivalents 34% 59% 7% 0% 100%

 Total assets 78% 10% 11% 1% 100%

 Total non-current liabilities 99% 0% 0% 1% 100%

 Total current liabilities 77% 12% 9% 3% 100%

 Total liabilities 83% 9% 6% 2% 100%
        
An increase /decrease in the value of the norwegian krone of 10 per cent will normally result in a 6-7 per cent increase/decrease in the 
group’s operating profit and a 3-4 per cent increase/decrease in the groups equity.      
 
Fair	values		 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
Financial assets and liabilities, with the exception of bank overdraft, bank loan, pensions and loans to subsidiaries, mainly comprise short term 
non-interest-bearing items. based on this, it is the management’s assessment that the group does not have financial assets or liabilities with 
potentially significant differences between net book value and fair value.       
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Note 19 peNsioNs 

Simtronics	ASA
The company is required to have a pension plan for all employees which satisfy the requirements in the law related to mandatory pension plans 
in norway. The pension plan for simtronics AsA is in compliance with these official requirements.

simtronics AsA has during 2009 converted the collective pension scheme to a defined contribution scheme. The pension scheme is treated inn 
accordance with iAs 19 in the accounts. The defined contribution scheme covers 32 employees. The scheme implies that simtronics AsA make 
a pension contribution of 5% of salary between 1g and 6g, and 8% of salary between 6g and 12 g. The retirement age is 67 years.  
 
in addition, simtronics AsA has uninsured pension commitments related to the AFP scheme which covers 30 employees and 1 pensioner. The 
AFP-obligation is calculated based on an expected retirement rate of 30% at 62 years. For demographic and resignation factors, the assump-
tions given in the recommendations for use of pension assumptions under iAs 19, issued by norwegian Accounting sandards board in january 
2010 have been applied. For demographic and resignation factors, normal insurance assumptions have been used. For mortality rate statisics, 
table k2005 has been used in the calculations.      

Actuarial gains and losses are required to be recognised when the cumulative unrecognised amount thereof at the beginning of the period 
 exceeds a «corridor». The corridor is 10 per cent of the greater of the present value of the obligation and the fair value of the assets. The 
 corridor is calculated separately for each plan.

 simtronics AsA simtronics group

2009 2008 2009 2008
  Figures in Tnok

Expense	recognised	in	the	income	statement

 85  1 443 Current service cost  85  1 443 

 34  442 interest cost of pension obligations  34  442 

 -  (515) expected return on plan assets  -  (515)

 17  20 Actuarial gains and loses  17  20 

 17  186 social security tax included in pension cost  17  186 

	153	 	1	576	 Net	pension	cost 	153	 	1	576	

Financial	ststus	as	at	31	December	

 -  9 920 Present value of funded pension obligations  -  9 920 

 540  743 Present value of unfunded pension obligations  540  743 

 -  (5 644) Fair value of plan assets  -  (5 644)

 (39)  (4 294) unrecognised actuarial gains and losses  (39)  (4 294)

 76  708 social security tax obligation  76  708 

	577	 	1	433	 Pension	liability 	577	 	1	433	

Basis	for	calculation

4,40% 4,30% discount rate 4,40% 4,30%

4,25% 4,25% expected wage increase 4,25% 4,25%

4,00% 4,25% expected increase of base amount 4,00% 4,25%

5,60% 6,30% expected return on plan assets 31 december 5,60% 6,30%

Changes in the net liability for defined benefit

obligations as recognised in the balance sheet

 1 433  319 net liability at 1 january  1 433  319 

 (56)  (461) Contriburion received  (56)  (461)

 (952)  - impact of phased out collective pension scheme  (952)

 153  1 576 expense recognised in the income statement  153  1 576 

	577	 	1	433	 Net	pension	liability	at	31	December 	577	 	1	433	
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 simtronics AsA simtronics konsern

2009 2008 2009 2008

  Figures in Tnok

The expense is recognised in the following

line item in the income statement

	153	 	1	576	 Payroll	and	related	costs 	153	 	1	576	
      
in addition to the pension costs related to the AFP scheme, it is for 2009 recognised a cost of nok 765 related to the collective pension 
scheme.  

Simtronics	group
There are no pension schemes with defined benefit plans in the group in addition to the AFP pension scheme in simtronics AsA. The 
 norwegian subsidiaries in the group have a defined contribution plan in compliance with the requirements of the law related to mandatory 
pension plans in norway. Pension premiums are expensed as they occur.

simtronics sAs has a commitment to pay an indemnity amount to employees upon retirement. This is a «one-off» commitment, limited to 3 
months pay for each person employed at retirement. A provision of nok 1 048 has been included in pension liabilities in the balance sheet as 
at 31 december 2009 (2008: nok 829).

Note 20 iNCome tax expeNse 
     
Recognised	in	the	income	statement	

 simtronics AsA simtronics group

2009 2008 2009 2008
  Figures in Tnok

	Current	tax	expense	

 -  -  Current year  2 736  2 778 

 (3)  -  under/(over) provided in previous years  (203)  (3 565)

 (3)  -  Tax payable in the balance  2 533  (787)

	Deferred	tax	expense	

 1 652  (411)  Changes in temporary differences  (6 340)  2 694 

 (972)  -  Tax effect of items booked directly against equity  (972)  - 

 -  (491)  Recognition of deferred tax assets related to this year’s loss  -  (964)

 2 307  -  Recognition of previously non-recognised tax asset  3 089  - 

 2 987  (902)  (4 224)  1 730 

	2	984	 	(902) 	Total	income	tax	expense	(benefit)	in	income	statement	 	(1	488) 	4	508	

	Reconciliation	of	effective	tax	rate	

 (22 474)  (4 281)  Profit before tax  (43 357)  16 686 

 (6 293)  (1 199)  income tax using the domestic corp. tax rate 28%  (12 342)  4 672 

 -  -  effect of tax rates in foreign jurisdictions  204  (625)

 505  296  Permanent differences, non-deductible expenses  2 101  461 

 (972)  -  effect of items booked directly against equity  (972)  - 

 9 745  -  effect of non-recognised loss carry-forwards  9 521  - 

 2 984  (902)  Total income tax expense in income statement  (1 488)  4 508 

-13,3% 21,1% 	Actual	tax	rate	 3,4% 27,0%
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Note 21 deFerred tax assets aNd liabilities 

Simtronics	ASA
items of deferred tax assets and liabilities recognised in the balance sheet: 

Assets liabilities  net 

2009 2008 2009 2008 2009 2008

 Figures in Tnok 

 Property, plant and equipment  -  -  (433)  (217)  (433)  (217)

 intangible assets  -  -  -  -  -  - 

 inventory  -  89  -  -  -  89 

 Accounts receivables and other receivables  230  324  -  -  230  324 

 Provisions  28  -  -  -  28  - 

 defined benefit plans  145  401  -  -  145  401 

 other items  -  -  (1 029)  (5)  (1 029)  (5)

 Tax value of loss carry-forwards  1 059  3 366  -  -  1 059  3 366 

	Tax	assets/(liabilities)	 	1	462	 	4	180	 	(1	462) 	(222) 	-	 	3	959	

 set off tax  (403)  (222)  403  222  -  - 

	Net	tax	assets/(liabilities)	 	1	059	 	3	958	 	(1	059) 	-	 	-	 	3	959	
      
The company’s management have calculated the tax value of the loss carry-forwards, at a level of deferred tax as 
a result of tax increasing temporary differences.

in other differences, it is included nok 933 in deferred tax related to the equity component of the convertible loan, see note 27 for further 
information. 

 unrecognised deferred tax assets 2009 2008

 Tax asset/(liability) related to deductible temporary differences  -  - 

 Tax asset related to losses  9 745  - 
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Simtronics	group
items of deferred tax assets and liabilities recognised in the balance sheet:

Assets liabilities  net 

2009 2008 2009 2008 2009 2008

Figures in Tnok

 Property, plant and equipment  161  59  (499)  -  (338)  59 

 intangible assets  -  -  (10 762)  (15 046)  (10 762)  (15 046)

 inventory  138  422  -  -  138  422 

 long-term contracts  -  -  (4 261)  (9 098)  (4 261)  (9 098)

 Accounts receivables and other receivables  331  435  -  -  331  435 

 Provisions  147  84  -  -  147  84 

 defined benefit plans  495  401  -  -  495  401 

 other items  -  739  (1 329)  (379)  (1 329)  360 

 Tax value of loss carry-forwards  10 343  12 388  -  -  10 343  12 388 

	Tax	assets/(liabilities)	 	11	615	 	14	529	 	(16	851) 	(24	523) 	(5	236) 	(9	996)

 set off tax  (5 312)  (9 833)  5 312  9 833  -  - 

	Net	tax	assets/(liabilities)	 	6	303	 	4	695	 	(11	539) 	(14	689) 	(5	236) 	(9	996)
      

 unrecognised deferred tax assets 2009 2008

 Tax asset/(liability) related to deductible temporary differences  -  155 

 Tax asset related to losses  12 449  4 057 
      
unrecognised deferred tax assets relates to loss carry-forwards in simtronics AsA and simtronics sAs. As a consequence of the significant 
cost the company have had related to expanding and growth, simtronics AsA have had deferred tax losses the last years. The future possibility 
to utilise this deferred tax asset has not yet been adequately substantiated according to the requirements in iAs 12.

Considering the expected reversing period and various tax jurisdictions, deferred tax related to excess values in the group is not set off against 
deferred tax asset.  



 Annual Report 2009    Page 61 

Note 22 provisioNs 

 simtronics AsA  simtronics group 

 warranties  Public taxes  Total  warranties  Public taxes  Total 

2009 2008 2009 2008 2009 2008 2009 2008 2009 2008 2009 2008

  Figures in Tnok

 -  -  -  354  -  354  balance at 1 january  1 112  499  -  354  1 112  853 

 -  -  -  -  -  -  Provision due to acquisition  -  184  -  -  -  184 

 -  -  100  -  100  -  Provisions made during the year  711  841  100  -  811  841 

 -  -  -  -  -  -  Provisions used during the year  -  -  -  -  -  - 

 -  -  -  354  -  354  Provisions reversed during the year  751  561  -  354  751  915 

 -  -  -  -  -  -  unwind of discount  -  -  -  -  -  - 

	-	 	-	 	100	 	-	 	100	 	-	 	Balance	at	31	December	 	1	072	 	963	 	100	 	-	 	1	172	 	964	

Warranties	
The provision as at 31 december 2009 is related to the guaranty of products in simtronics sAs, water mist engineering As and Fire eater A/s.
Public taxes 

The provision as at 31 december 2009 is related to public taxes on 2007 share-option program vested and «in the money». no options excer-
cised as at 31 december 2009. 

Note 23 Cash aNd Cash equivaleNts 

 simtronics AsA  simtronics group 

2009 2008 2009 2008

  Figures in Tnok

 888  3 550  bank deposits, available  9 971  7 688 

 -  -  Restricted bank deposits (payroll tax funds)  2  28 

 525  508  money market funds  525  508 

	1	413	 	4	058	 	Total	cash	and	cash	equivalents	 	10	498	 	8	224	

Restricted	cash	deposits	
simtronics AsA has a bank guarantee in place for payroll tax funds, and restricted cash deposit are therefore nok 0 as at 31 december 2009

As a condition of the current loan agreements simtronics AsA has committed itself to establishing a cash deposit of nok 30 000, see note 16. 
These funds are classified as non-current assets, see note 5.

At 22 march 2010 nok 10 000 was released from the restricted cash deposit as available cash in simtronics AsA. 

Money	market	funds	
simtronics AsA has invested in 50,47 shares in the fund dnb noR likviditet 20 (iv). As at 31 december 2009 the market value is nok 525 and 
in 2009 nok 17 has been recognised in the income statement as a change in value of this investment.

The fund is a bond fund comprising short-term debt securities and bonds with an average term to maturity of 2 months.

The debt securities and bonds are mainly issued by the norwegian government, local government authorities, banks and insurance compa-
nies. Funds are available at the latest 5 days after a withdrawal request is made.
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Note 24 goverNmeNt graNts

Figures in Tnok 

simtronics AsA has received nok 295 (2008: nok 0) in government grants through skattefunn. The grant has been recognised as development 
support, reducing development cost in the balance sheet. 

Note 25 other operatiNg expeNses 

Non-recurring	expenses	and	restructuring	charges	
The board of directors proposed for the extraordinary general Assembly held on 4 may 2009 that simtronics group should acquire the electro-
tech division in Technor. The transaction value was estimated to nok 186,8m. however, the transaction was not approved by the extraordinary 
general Assembly. Transaction costs related to the rejected transaction were expensed in the first quarter 2009. Consequently, these non-
recurring expenses had a negative impact of nok 7,2m on ebiTdA for the first three quarters in 2009.

during the fourth quarter of 2009 the group has had other non-recurring costs related to the restructuring of the group. hereunder costs 
related to the merger, integration and relocation of the subsidiaries water mist engineering As and eTech Process As. The group also decided 
to discontinue the start-up of a subsidiary in korea. Total restructuring expenses were nok 8,4m for the full year.

Note 26 aCquisitioNs iN 2008    
    
Figures in Tnok    

    
in the first quarter of 2008, simtronics AsA agreed to acquire a majority share in two companies, eTech Process As (100%) and Fire eater 
A/s (51%). Reference is made to information given in stock exchange announcements and information memorandums dated 6 February 2008 
(eTech Process As) and 18 February 2008 (Fire eater A/s). Final agreements were signed on 19 February 2008 (Fire eater A/s) and 29 February 
2008 (eTech Process As).     
    
eTech Process As is consolidated in the group financial statements with effect from 1 march 2008, while Fire eater A/s is consolidated with 
effect from 1 February 2008. if these entities had been consolidated in the group financial statements with effect from 1 january 2008, turnover 
for 2008 would increase by nok 15 100.    
    
ETech	Process	AS	 	 	 	
simtronics AsA acquired 100% of the company’s shares for a cash settlement of nok 10.000, with a conditional payment that was fixed to nok 
6.700. The remaining acquisition-related compensations were settled 18. mars 2009 of which nok 3.350 was settled through a cash payment 
and nok 3.350 were settled through an issuance of 674.044 shares in simtronics AsA. The share settlement was based on an agreed share 
price of nok 4,97 per share ( based on the closing simtronics share price on 29 February 2008). The total compensation for the acquisition of 
eTech Process As was nok 16.700.     
    
Fire	Eater	A/S	 	 	 	
simtronics AsA acquired 51% of the company’s shares for a cash settlement of dkk 56 100, converted to nok 59 724, and an additional pay-
ment of dkk 18 700 converted to nok 20 200 to be settled in simtronics shares. The additional payment was settled 17 september 2008. 
4 308 370 shares were issued, based on a share price of 4.6759. The offer price was based on the simtronics share price on the date that sim-
tronics AsA announced Q2 results for 2008.     
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Overview	of	the	allocation	of	the	acquisition	settlement	

net assets: eTech Process As Fire eater A/s

Total settlement 18 521 61 800

book value of equity (100%) -20 405 22 280

excess value 38 926 39 520

goodwill (majority interests’ share) 25 071 37 467

deferred tax assets, not previously recognised in the balance sheet 7 386  - 

self-developed technology 6 621 26 406

Customer relations 632 8 647

other intangible assets 1 732 268

deferred tax liability, from excess value -2 516 -9 890

minority interest  - -23 379

Total	excess	value 38	926 39	520

net cash settlement at the transaction date

Cash settlement including share-option costs  15 172  41 892 

Cash acquired  -  - 

Net	cash	settlement 	15	172	 	41	892	

Note 27 CoNvertible loaN 

on 18 november 2009 an extraordinary general Assembly approved a convertible loan of nok 71,6m from Autronica Fire & security As. The 
loan period is 3 years with a 7% fixed annual interest to be paid on a half year basis. The loan is unsecured and rank junior to loans from dnb 
noR AsA. The loan can be converted into shares in simtronics AsA on the request from the lender based on a share price of nok 2,36.

The management has identified an alternative interest rate for a similar loan without the possibility to convert into shares, to be 9%, based on 
input from multiple finance institutions. The loan is recorded at a discount fair value of 64,2m. The conversion right has been valued to nok 
2,5m and is recorded as an equity component in accordance with iAs 32, ref note 17. The convertible loan has loan covenants that are linked 
with the loan covenants for the bank loans, ref note 15.

The loan agreement is formulated in such a way that if simtronics AsA is not in breach with the covenants in the dnb noR loan agreement, it’s 
not in breach with covenants in the convertible loan agreement. simtronics AsA has received a confirmation from Autronica Fire & security As, 
that they do not consider simtronics AsA to be in breach with the covenants, as far as dnb noR has given a waiver.

Note 28 subsequeNt eveNts 

Figures in Tnok 

The board of director’s are not aware of significant events after the balance day.
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The board and manager have today prepared and approved the board of directors report and the consolidated and separate annual financial 
statements for simtronics AsA, for the calendar year 2009 and per the 31december 2009 (the Annual report for 2009).

The annual report for 2009 has been prepared in accordance with iFRs’s and iFRiC’s as adopted by the eu and by a norwegian supplementary 
requirement in the securities Trading Act, including the additional requirements applicable as per 31 december 2009 under the norwegian 
Accounting Act . The board of directors report is prepared in accordance with the requirements in the norwegian Accounting Act and the 
 norwegian Accounting standard no. 16. as per 31 december 2009.

To the best of the board’s and manager’s knowledge, the consolidated and separate financial statements have been prepared in accordance 
with applicable accounting standards, and the information in the accounts gives a true and fair view of the assets, debts and financial position 
and profit/loss in general as per 31 december 2009 for the group and the parent company.

To the best of the board’s and manager’s knowledge, the board of directors report gives a correct summary of important events in the 
 accounting period and their influence on the annual year accounts. To the best of the board’s and manager’s knowledge, the description of the 
most central risk and uncertainty factors which the business faces in the next accounting period, and the description of closely related parties’ 
significant transactions, is also a correct summary.

declaration from the board  
and manager

oslo, 29 April 2010
The board of directors of simtronics AsA

John	Afseth
Chairman of the board

Tore	Amundsen
member of the board

Valborg	Lundegaard
member of the board

Hans	Inge	Nerby
member of the board

Rune	Martini
President and Ceo
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